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Chairman’s Statement

ETRBES

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2019 was another unpredictable and challenging year.

The trade war between the two largest economies led to the instability of
worldwide economy and stock market. We kept our activities at low level in
order to avoid this market instability.

Although trade war brings us risk, it also brings us opportunity. Countries
realised their weakness which lead to their development in those areas.
Although it takes time for development, it creates opportunity for us to explore
quality investment in the future.

Looking ahead for year 2020, the start of this decade should be another
challenging and unpredictable year. We will continue with our cautious in

assessing and investing in potential investments.

At last, | would like to take this opportunity expressing my warmest thanks to
your support.

Cheng Hairong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 May 2020
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Management Discussion
B E W

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market Review

During the Year, the market was capricious mainly due to the trade war
between USA and PRC since the mid of last year. The negotiation between
USA and PRC showed a positive sign at the start of the Year. However, in
May of the Year, USA was unsatisfied with the progress of the negotiation
and decided to impose custom tariff on additional products produced in PRC.
Although the negotiation showed a positive sign again near the end of the
Year, the shaking of the stock market last until the end of the Year.

Operational Review

During the Year, the Group continued its investment activities in both listed
and unlisted investments and other related financial assets.

As mentioned in market review section, the market still fluctuated during the
Year. Same as last year, in order to avoid the hit from the economic
uncertainty and stock market crash, the investing activities of the Group
remained at low level. The Group also participated again in the investments of
A share of PRC through the Shanghai Connect and Shenzhen Connect.

Also because of the action of USA in mid of the Year, the share prices of our
investments decreased which in turn led to the significant fair value loss at the
Year End Date.

Other than the listed investments, the Group did not have new unlisted
investment during the Year.
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Management Discussion (continued)
EEEmil (E)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results for the Year

The Group reported a loss after tax of approximately HK$78 million for the
Year which is similar to the loss of HK$87 million for Year 2018. Other than
the administrative expenses, investment management expense and finance
cost which were rather stable, the loss for the Year was mainly due to the
following reasons:

(i) a loss of approximately HK$55 million (Year 2018: HK$53 million) arose
from the change in fair value of revenue in nature listed equity
investments at FVTPL which was caused by the fluctuation of the stock
market. This loss of HK$55 million included a realised loss of
approximately HK$2 million (Year 2018: HK$54 million); and

(i) a loss of approximately HK$4 million (Year 2018: HK$15 million) arose
from the change in fair value of capital in nature listed equity
investments at FVTPL which was caused by the fluctuation of the stock
market. This loss of HK$4 million included a realised loss of
approximately HK$0.06 million (Year 2018: nil).

Gross proceeds from operation

1 7% B R

REERE

AEERAFEHEBSHRBEEIBLN7,8008 %
JC - B2018F FE R B ES 7008 BT E ©
BRITHHAY KRETEMIRUBRARE
BEN AFENEBBEEZARNUTERRE:

() FABRmED BREHEE 2R FERT
ABmz FTRAEERAFEEHEE
/&5 18 £95,500 & % 7T (2018 F F [ : 5,300
BAEIL) #5508 B TEEREE #
IR EE 892008 % 7T (2018 F F € : 5,400
gan) &

iy FEBRMEE BEAUE ZZRAFER
A2 FTRARERNTFEEHEL
B8 494008 78 7T (2018 F F ¥ : 1,5008
L) c ZA0B B LB EBEECEEE
BH6EB T (2018FFE : T) o

CEMESRELE

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FER FET
Gross proceeds from disposal of financial assets at ~ H &R A FEFABZ 2 MEE
FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes (3R B = Az 1EE) 2 15
RIALRRR 8,439 17,753
Dividend income i B A 3,313 4,702
11,752 22,455

As mentioned in the business review section above, the investing activities in
listed equity securities of the Group was kept at low level and hence the gross
proceeds from the disposal of equity investments at FVTPL which are revenue
in nature decreased when compared with that of Year 2018.
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Other gains and losses

Other gains and losses mainly comprise of fair value loss of financial assets at
FVTPL. Included in fair value loss of financial assets at FVTPL are net losses
of HK$55,492,000 (Year 2018: HK$53,054,000) and HK$3,838,000 (Year
2018: HK$14,712,000) which are revenue and capital in nature respectively
for tax purposes. Net loss of HK$55,492,000 included a realised loss on
disposal of financial assets at FVTPL which is revenue in nature for tax
purposes of HK$1,801,000 (Year 2018: HK$54,105,000). The net loss of
HK$3,838,000 included a realised loss on disposal of financial assets at
FVTPL which is capital in nature for tax purposes of HK$57,000 (Year 2018:
nil). Please refer to results for the Year section above and note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements for analysis and details.

Administrative expenses

Among the administrative expenses, staff remuneration of HK$4,199,000 (Year
2018: HK$3,805,000) is the largest expenses which represents approximately
37% (Year 2018: 28%) of the administrative expenses. Employees are
regarded as the most valuable asset and the Group is aimed to reward the
staff with competitive remuneration package.

Investment management expenses

Investment management expense of HK$7,200,000 (Year 2018:
HK$7,200,000) represents expense paid to the investment managers for the
provision of investment management services to the Group. Please refer to
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements and the announcement of
the Company dated 18 December 2018 for details.

Finance cost

Finance cost includes interest payment to a securities broker for provision of
margin loan and interest expense of lease liabilities.

In order to better utilise the resources, the Group used margin loan provided
by a securities broker for its investment in listed equity securities since 2017.
At Year End Date, the margin loan from a securities broker amounted to
approximately HK$49,884,000 (Year 2018: HK$46,185,000) and the related
interest expenses was approximately HK$4,201,000 (Year 2018:
HK$4,546,000). The interest payment for both years are similar as the margin
loan were kept at similar level for both years.
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Management Discussion (continued)
EEEwmal ()

During the Year, the Group adopted HKFRS 16 “Leases” for the first time. At
Year End Date, the lease liabilities amounted to approximately HK$506,000
(Year 2018: nil) and the related interest expenses was approximately
HK$42,000 (Year 2018: ni).

Investments/Significant Investments

The investment objective of the Group is to enhance the corporate value to
the Shareholders. The strategy of the Group is to identify and invest in both
listed and unlisted investments with potential of growth within their industries.
In identifying potential investment, the Group will consider its business
segment, operation, current value and the potential of going public. Currently,
the Group has no specific industry focus on potential investment.

As mentioned above, the trade war between USA and PRC affect the stock
market and hence, the value of listed investments of the Group decreased
significantly at Year End Date.

At Year End Date, the Group held the following significant investments:

TOM Group Limited (“TOM”) (2383.HK)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, share price decreased by 34.03%.

(ii) during the Year, realised loss is HK$48,000 and unrealized loss at Year
End Date amounted to HK$10,832,000 respectively.

@iy at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
45,132,000 shares and 1.14% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 29.45%.

TOM continued its focus on rationalising operations and harnessing digital
innovation in its media businesses, and at the same time, has strategically
invested in technology-centric sectors to drive long term growth. TOM Group
will continue to strategically invest in technology-centric sectors to capture
synergies with its existing businesses, and remain committed to creating long
term value for shareholders.
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Management Discussion (continued)
EEEmL (&)
ITC Properties Group Ltd (“ITC”) ErmEEERERAB ([EFEHE]D
(199.HK) (199.HK)
Information for this investment: HImEZER
() during the Year, share price decreased by 43.93%. 0] RAFE  BRE T %43.93% °

RAFE BE2BEBEASEIT RN
TR A0 B 8 B 7 4R o5 2 A S5 9% AT 40 R
EE181,284,000/8 L% * REHL B Z K
I E518 542,414,000 T °

(i) during the Year, realised loss is HK$Nil and the unrealized loss at Year (i)
End Date amounted to HK$42,414,000 which is after the impairment
loss of HK$1,284,000 before the adoption of HKFRS 9.

@iy —at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
22,940,763 shares and 2.37% respectively.

iy MNFELHH FIHEBROBE REMND 5 A
22,940,763 | i% 17 2 2.37% °

REFZRE EARBENRAKEREE
B LE Pl 3 14.26% -

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 14.26%. (i)

BHBESEINBTUERZHETHE KU
RERER  UAEBEARKEF WG - BEE
BE—FERZPE R MEARKEH
S EEMESENERTHRER RS
REAMNEEABRREE ARG EHE N
BRBRAE BEEAEREHEREES -

ITC will focus on the sales of remaining properties and the redevelopment
projects to secure the revenue for the coming few years. In addition to
stepping their businesses further to the PRC, Macau, Canada and the United
Kingdom, ITC will keep on improving earnings and enhancing the
shareholders’ value by working hard on the projects on hand and at the same
time, be selective and cautious on replenishing ITC’s portfolio when suitable
opportunities arise.

Shaw Brothers Holdings Limited (“Shaw Brother”) BERBERERLAT((BE T

(953.HK) (953.HK)
Information for this investment: ZIEZER
i) during the Year, share price decreased by 26.25%. 0] RARFEE - IRE T 526.25% °

RAFE BEREE/TETRRF
4 B 2 RE3HE 18 &28,967,000% T °

(i) during the Year, realised loss is HK$Nil and unrealized loss at Year End (i)
Date amounted to HK$28,967,000 respectively.

REFZR IFEROEE READBR
69,328,000 % i {7 }.4.88% °

(i) at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are (i)
69,328,000 shares and 4.88% respectively.

REHB EREHERAEEBEE
B £ 9] %36.36% ©

(iv)  atYear End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 6.35%. (iv)
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Management Discussion (continued)
EEEwmal ()

One sector of China’s entertainment industry that recorded notable growth is
online programmes. More and more viewers are tuning into variety shows and
other programmes online. With its strength in producing high-quality content,
Shaw Brother is well positioned to ride on the rapid growth of China’s online
video market. Shaw Brother is on track with its strategic development and
has allocated substantial resources into its major business segments. Shaw
Brother will continue to fine-tune its strategies based on market conditions to
maximise growth.

Greater Bay Area Dynamic Growth Holding Limited (“Dynamic
Growth”) (1189.HK)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, share price increased by 18.37%.

(i) during the Year, realised loss is HK$Nil and the unrealized loss at Year
End Date amounted to HK$4,095,000 which is after the impairment
loss of HK$19,725,000 before the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(i) at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are
39,000,000 shares and 4.94% respectively.

(v)

at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 5.86%.

Dynamic Growth has, on 3 July 2019, entered into an agreement with the
PRC partner of Dynamic Growth Guangzhou to extend its operating period
for 10 years commencing from 16 January 2017. Coupled with the central
government of the PRC unveiling the development plan for the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area during 2019, Dynamic Growth sees that
the main operations of Dynamic Growth continue to stay within the core
engine of the development in the region with the full support of the PRC
Government. Riding on China’s growth story and under tough conditions over
the past few years with taking a wider and longer term view, and with the
core strength of the Dynamic Growth is built on its philosophy and strategy
that focusing on the development and maintenance of the portfolio of hotels
and other assets for the long term future.
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Rakarta Limited (“Rakarta”)

Information for this investment:
(i) during the Year, fair value decreased by HK$20,382,000.

(i) during the Year, realised loss is HK$nil and unrealised loss at Year End
Date amounted to HK$24,340,000 respectively.

(i)  at Year End Date, number and percentage of shares held are 147
shares and 14.7% respectively.

(iv)  at Year End Date, its size relative to the Group’s total assets is 15.38%.

Rakarta Limited is an unlisted investment holding company with its subsidiary
principally engaged in zinc and lead mining in the PRC. The mine has
obtained the exploitation licence and is in the process of planning the
extraction of the minerals. Depending on the market conditions, the
management of the mine expects that the sales of the minerals, being
commonly used minerals, provide positive cash flows to the operation of the
mine in the future.

For a detailed understanding of the performance and future prospects of
those listed significant investments, please refer to the published annual/
interim reports of the respective listed companies as shown on the HKExnews
of the Stock Exchange. Other details of significant investments of the Group
are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At Year End Date, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$28,728,000 (2018: HK$50,935,000).

In order to better utilise the resources, the Group used margin loan provided
by a securities broker for the investments in listed equity securities during the
Year. The margin loan of HK$49,884,000 (2018: HK$46,185,000) has no
determined maturity date and is subject to interest specified from time to time
by the securities broker. The maximum amount of the margin loan granted by
the securities broker depends on the market value of assets pledged with the
securities broker. Details of the margin loan are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio (total liabilities/total assets) at Year End Date was 26.87%
(2018: 19.51%).

Management Discussion (continued)
EEEmm ()

Rakarta Limited ([ Rakarta|)
BB ZER
) WHAEFEE  QFET 20,382,000 5T °
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Management Discussion (continued)
EEEmil (E)

Capital structure

Shareholders’ fund, internal resources and margin loan from a securities
broker were used in funding the investment and operating activities of the
Group.

Details of the margin loan is set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward to year 2020, although USA and PRC have concluded the
first stage of the trade negotiation, the trade negotiation in the coming
stage(s) is expected to be more difficult. Together with the global outbreak of
coronavirus since late 2019, the worldwide economies may be affected and
downturn may happen. Therefore, the market is expected to be highly volatile
in year 2020.

OTHER INFORMATION

Charges on assets

Charges on assets of the Group are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Litigation

There was no outstanding litigation as at Year End Date.

Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at Year End Date.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and
Related Hedges

During the Year, certain investments, cash and bank balances and other
receivables of the Group were denominated in HK$, USD and RMB. Since
HK$ is pegged to USD, significant exposure is not expected in USD
transactions and balances. During the Year 2018, the Group received the
proceeds denominated in RMB (equivalent to approximately HK$32 million)
from the disposal of available-for-sale investment in year 2017 which was
then translated into HK$. Except for this, other transactions and balances in
RMB were not significant and the exposure to RMB is insignificant.
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The Group does not have foreign exchange hedging policy. However,
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Due to the business nature, the Group has no major customer and supplier.
Therefore, there is no ageing analysis of the accounts receivable and
accounts payable.

Employee and Remuneration Policies

At Year End Date, the Group had 6 employees and 5 Directors. Remuneration
policies for the employees and the Directors are reviewed by the Group in
accordance with the market situation and their performance from time to
time. Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year to review the
remuneration policy and package of Directors and senior management of the
Group. No Director or executive is involved in dealing his/her own
remuneration. In addition to salary payments, the Group has participated in
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Pursuant to the MPF Scheme and the policy of the Group, the Group and its
employees are each making contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of their
monthly relevant income. Forfeited contribution can be used to reduce future
contribution of the Group. There was no forfeited contribution for the Year.
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Directors’ Report

EEERE

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities can be found in the

Management Discussion of this annual report which form part of this
directors’ report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 50.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year (2018:
nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year. Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the Year in plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation amounting to
HK$20,000 (2018: HK$40,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Director

Mr. CHENG Hairong (Chairman and Managing Director)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. LAU Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. FENG Nien Shu
Mr. LUI Siu Tsuen, Richard
Ms. WONG Lai Kin, Elsa

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws, Mr. Cheng Hairong and Mr.
Feng Nien Shu shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are as
follows:

Executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hairong, aged 60, was appointed as an executive Director and
managing Director in 2010 and 2016 respectively. He is the chairman and
managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee and the director of the subsidiaries of the Company. He has over
22 years of experience as an executive director and consultant in establishing
and managing listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheng has extensive
knowledge in China finance and investments in life sciences, biotech, energy
saving, tourism, trading and financial service sectors. Mr. Cheng was the vice
chairman and executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (689.HK) and the
chairman and executive director of Vision Tech International Holdings Limited
(922.HK) (currently known as “Anxian Yuan China Holdings Limited”). Both
companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen, aged 68, was appointed as non-executive Director
and subsequently re-designated as executive Director and appointed as
chairman of the Company in 2009. In 2010, he was redesignated as non-
executive Director and deputy chairman of the Company. He is a member of
the remuneration committee and the director of the subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 44 years of international corporate development and
management experience in infrastructure developments as well as
construction and engineering services involving the road, rail, port, power,
telecommunications, mining and resources sectors in the Asia Pacific Region.
Mr. Lau is currently the chairman and managing director of PYI Corporation
Limited (498.HK) and the deputy chairman and executive director of South
Shore Holdings Limited (formerly The 13 Holdings Limited) (577.HK). Both
companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Feng Nien Shu, aged 54, was appointed as an INED in 2009. He is the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. He holds a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Windsor in Canada and
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the York University in Canada. He resigned as
the managing partner and chief investment officer of Sapientia Capital, a
private equity investment manager and advisory during the year. He has over
24 years of experience in investment, merger and acquisition in China and
South East Asia.

Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, aged 64, was appointed as an INED in 2009.
He is the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is a fellow member of each of HKICPA and
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the United Kingdom.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Adelaide in Australia. He has over 30 years of experience in property
investment, corporate finance and media and entertainment business. Mr. Lui
is currently an executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (571.HK) and
Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (8075.HK). Both companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa, aged 54, was appointed as an INED in 2009. She
is a member of the audit committee and nomination committee of the
Company. She holds a Bachelor's and Master’s degree in Law from The
University of Hong Kong, as well as a Master’s degree in Corporate Finance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Ms. Wong is a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of Hong Kong and Supreme Court of England and Wales, a
member of the Hong Kong Law Society and Hong Kong Society for Financial
Analysts. She also holds the Chartered Financial Analyst designation. Ms.
Wong has over 29 years of experience in the legal profession, with majority
years working as corporate counsel and company secretary of Hong Kong
listed companies. Ms. Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of PYI Corporation Limited (498.HK) which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

On 21 December 2017, all Directors have entered into appointment letters
with the Company for a term commencing from 21 December 2017 and
continue until terminated by either party by not less than three months prior
written notice or any time agreed by both parties. They are subject to the
requirement that one-third of all the Directors shall retire from office by
rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

During the Year, the executive Director and non-executive Director have not
received remuneration from the Company and each of the INEDs received
director’s fee of HK$80,000 per annum. The director’s fee for each of the
INEDs has been increased to HK$100,000 per annum since 1 January 2020
which is determined with reference to their duties and the prevailing market
conditions.

Senior Management

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu, aged 52, was appointed as financial controller and
company secretary of the Group in 2011 and 2015 respectively. He is also
the director of the subsidiaries of the Group. He is an associate member of
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He holds a bachelor’s degree of arts in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong. He has over 26 years of
experience in finance and accounting gained from international accounting
firms and listed companies. Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-
executive director of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited (1480.HK) which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual confirmation
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that all of the INEDs are independent.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-Laws, Directors shall be indemnified out of
the assets and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, provided that this indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the
Directors.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At Year End Date, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company and any of their associates in the Shares and
underlying Shares or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:

Long positions in the Shares
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Percentage of
issued share

Personal Family* Corporate* Total capital of the

Interests Interests Interests Interests Company

L NN

BRITREAZ

Name of Director E=E#H BARER RIRER" AR MR Aok

Lau Tom Ko Yuen EIR=EN — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B E)

Cheng Hairong IBR=ES 9,370,000 - - 9,370,000 0.78%

* Beneficial owner
+  Interests of spouse

#  Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled
by it

Note:

266,890,840 Shares were held by Favor Hero Investments Limited, a company
controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to
50% by Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko
Yuen.

Save as disclosed above, at Year End Date, none of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed to have
any interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register that required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

# REAXRAARSIEBEZNIARESRE

MaE
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B+ M 2 7 8 f Sun Matrix Limited 122 1 519% # 25 o
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At Year End Date, the following persons had interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

FERR

BARRRREBEES RPEHRIIFIBHRATE
ZELMALE THATRELEBRRBRN
REBEROPHEBEE AR

Long positions in the Shares RN Z2HA
Percentage of
issued share
Family* Corporate® Total capital of the
Interests Interests Interests Company
AR H
BRERB ERITRA
Name of Shareholder % £ RikER" AR R BmrER ZED
Favor Hero Favor Hero — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
Investments Limited Investments Limited (Note)
(B %)
Sun Matrix Limited Sun Matrix Limited — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B %)
Lau Tom Ko Yuen* 2R 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3%)
Lan Yi B — 266,890,840 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)
Glory Avenue Limited Glory Avenue Limited — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)
Silvery Fortune Holdings Limited 8 & 1% i% & & A & — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)
Liu Min 2 & — 266,890,840 266,890,840 22.03%
(Note)
(B 3E)
+ Interests of spouse + BB

#  Interests beneficially held by the company itself or through companies controlled

by it

* Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen is a non-executive Director and Deputy Chairman of the

Company.
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Favor Hero Investments Limited was controlled as to 51% by Sun Matrix Limited and as
to 49% by Glory Avenue Limited. Sun Matrix Limited was controlled as to 50% by Mr.
Lau Tom Ko Yuen and 50% by Ms. Lan Yi, the spouse of Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. Glory
Avenue Limited was wholly controlled by Silvery Fortune Holdings Limited which was
wholly controlled by Mr. Liu Min.

Save as disclosed above, at Year End Date, the Directors were not aware of
any other person who had an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying Shares as recorded in the register that required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO and/or were directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of the share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
members of the Group.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

2016 IM Agreement

On 24 November 2015, the Company entered into the 2016 IM Agreement
with GC Capital for the appointment of GC Capital as the Company’s
investment manager for the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2018.

Under the 2016 IM Agreement, GC Capital was entitled to:

(a)  amanagement fee of a fixed amount of HK$600,000 per month (exclusive
of disbursements); and

(b)  discretionary bonus, if any and at such amount as the Board may at its
discretion determine, provided that no such bonus shall be payable
unless the Adjusted NAV as at the end of each Financial Year exceeds
the higher of: (i) the Net Asset Value for the year ended 31 December
2015; and (i) the Adjusted NAV of the most recent Financial Year after
year 2015 for which GC Capital is paid a discretionary bonus and the
amount of such bonus shall not exceed 5% of such excess. Such
bonus, if any, shall be paid within 30 days after the issue of the audited
financial statements of the Group for the relevant Financial Year.

2019 IM Agreement

On 18 December 2018, the Company entered into the 2019 IM Agreement
with Opus Capital for the appointment of Opus Capital as the Company’s
investment manager for the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December
2021.

Under the 2019 IM Agreement, Opus Capital is entitled to:

(8)  amanagement fee of a fixed amount of HK$600,000 per month (exclusive
of disbursements); and
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(b)  discretionary bonus, if any and at such amount as the Board may at its
discretion determine, provided that no such bonus shall be payable
unless the Adjusted NAV as at the end of each Financial Year exceeds
the higher of: (i) the Net Asset Value for the year ended 31 December
2018; and (i) the Adjusted NAV of the most recent Financial Year after
year 2018 for which Opus Capital is paid a discretionary bonus and the
amount of such bonus shall not exceed 5% of such excess. Such
bonus, if any, shall be paid within 30 days after the issue of the audited
financial statements of the Group for the relevant Financial Year.

Information on GC Capital and Opus Capital

GC Capital was then a corporation licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on
securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. It was incorporated on 30
June 1992 and it specialises in investment and fund management mainly in
Hong Kong.

Opus Capital is a corporation licensed to carry out Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO. It was incorporated in Hong
Kong in 2014 and is principally engaged in the business of provision of
investment services covering traditional and alternative investments via
various platforms.

Being the investment managers of the Company, GC Capital and Opus
Capital are connected person under Rule 14A.08 of the Listing Rules.

Further particulars of the above connected transaction is disclosed in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements and it has complied with the
requirements (including the disclosure requirements) of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have other
connected transaction.

The Board (including INEDs) confirmed that the 2016 IM Agreement and 2019
IM Agreement are entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course
of business, on normal commercial terms and such transaction is fair and
reasonable, in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole and is conducted
in accordance with the terms of 2016 IM Agreement and 2019 IM Agreement.

The Board confirmed that the auditor of the Company has issued to the
Board an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transaction of the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEHRE (E)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the investment management agreement, the details of which are
disclosed under the connected transaction section of this report, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks of the Group are highlighted as below:

1. The principal activity of the Group is highly affected by the volatility and
uncertainty of the worldwide economies which in turn affect the earning
power of business enterprises and the fluctuation in stock markets.
Hence, the Group is subject to the risk of decrease in the price and
value of its investments measured at FVTPL and FVOCI.

For investments measured at FVTPL, the financial impact on the
decrease in price of the investments is set out in note 29.2(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

For investments measured at FVOCI, the financial impact on the
decrease in fair value of the investments which in turn causes a
decrease in Net Asset Value is set out in note 29.5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In order to mitigate the risk, the Group engages an experienced
investment director and investment manager to manage the diversified
investment portfolio of the Group. Besides, an investment committee
will also review the investment portfolio regularly.

2. The Group has an earnest money deposit of HK$4,870,000 at Year
End Date which is subject to credit risk and can cause a financial loss
to the Group in case the party cannot repay the earnest money due to
the Group upon the cancellation of negotiation of the potential
investment in Year 2018. In order to mitigate the risk, the Group
performed a credit analysis on the background and creditworthiness of
the potential vendor.
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

Being an investment company, the objective of the Group is to invest in
quality investments which in turn enhance the corporate value to the
Shareholders. For both short term and long term investments, a major
objective of the Group is to achieve a gain in asset value of the investments
which in turn increase the value of the Group. Hence, the Net Asset Value,
which shows the value of the Group, is considered as the key performance
indicator of the Group. The Net Asset Value is set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENT POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group promotes environmental protection in daily business operations
including recycling consumables such as papers and reducing the energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings and appliances.

The Group will review its environmental protection practices from time to time
and will consider further eco-friendly measures and practices in the operation.

The environmental policies and performance of the Group are discussed in
more detail in the ESG Report of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group pays attention to legal and regulatory requirements in designing its
policies and practices. Being listed in the Stock Exchange with businesses
mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC, the laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the Group include Listing Rules and those laws of Hong
Kong on securities, companies, taxation and labour. The Listing Rules, laws
on securities and companies govern the listing and legal status of the Group,
the trading of the Shares and equity investments on the Stock Exchange. The
law on taxation governs the taxability of the activities of the Group which in
turn affects the profit and loss attributable to the Shareholders. The law on
labour governs the employment of the Group which affects the remuneration
and retirement benefits payable to the employees of the Group. Except
certain insignificant non-compliance with Listing Rules which had been
rectified, the Board is not aware of any non-compliance of relevant laws and
regulations. Legal and compliance advisers will be engaged when necessary
to ensure the Group operates in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group identified that the key stakeholders are employees of the Group
and the Shareholders.

Employees

The activities of the Group is heavily relied on the quality and loyalty of the
employees. Employees are regarded as the most valuable assets of the
Group. The Group is aimed to reward the staff with competitive remuneration
package and to provide staff with healthy and safety working environment.
Staff are encouraged to attend training courses and reimbursement will be
made for job-related training courses. The Group also promotes the employee
involvement in effective communications in designing its policies and
practices. The “social” section of the ESG Report has a more detall
discussion.

Shareholders

The Shareholders support the Group’s activities by providing funding to the
Group. One of the goals of the Group is to enhance the corporate value to
the Shareholders. The Group strives to obtain the quality investments in order
to enhance the asset value and profitability of the Group which in turn the
wealth of the Shareholders. The Group maintains regular communication with
Shareholders by way of general meetings and announcements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Due to the business nature, the Group has no major customer and supplier.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Shares during the Year.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws, or the Company Act (1981) of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

Except for dividend income which is exempt from tax in Hong Kong, the
Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of holding the Shares.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividend from time to time. The Board has absolute
discretion in the declaration of dividend after taking into account the following
factors:

Reserves of the Group available for distribution;
Performance of the Group;

Anticipation of future outlook of the economy;

Liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group; and
Any other matters considered appropriate by the Board.

[SHEE R I

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no major event subsequent to Year End Date.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
EEERE (B

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 12 June 2020 to
18 June 2020, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered. In order to determine the identity of the shareholders who
are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, all duly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Secretaries Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 June 2020.

AUDITOR

On 31 January 2020, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu tendered its resignation as
the auditor of the Company and Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was
appointed as auditor of the Company by the Board on the same date to fill
the casual vacancy. Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited retires and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Cheng Hairong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 14 May 2020
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

The Group is dedicated to maintaining a good credible framework of
corporate governance with a view to being transparent, open and
accountable to Shareholders.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the CG Code as its own
code on corporate governance practices.

During the Year, the Company complied with the code provisions in the CG
Code except for the following deviations:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. Being the only executive Director, Mr. Cheng Hairong, the
chairman of the Company, has assumed the role of chief executive officer of
the Company as well. The Board believes that in light of the nature and scale
of the Group’s business operations, it is in the interest of the Group for Mr.
Cheng Hairong to be the chairman and assume the role of chief executive
officer of the Company at the same time, as it helps to ensure consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning for the Group. The Board considers that the balance of
power and authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and this
structure will enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively.

THE BOARD

Composition

The Board currently consists of one executive Director, one non-executive
Director and three INEDs. Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, an INED, has the
appropriate professional accounting experience and expertise. The names
and biographical details of each Director are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this
annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKE (B)

On 21 December 2017, the non-executive Directors have entered into
appointment letters with the Company for a term commencing from 21
December 2017 and continue until terminated by either party by not less than
three months prior written notice or any time agreed by both parties. They are
subject to the requirement that one-third of all the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of
the Company. There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among members of the Board.

During the Year, all Directors have attended seminars and provided reading
materials covering a wide range of topics including corporate governance and
updates on the Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance. All Directors have
provided record of seminars attendance. The Company will continue to
arrange and/or fund the training in accordance with the CG Code. The Board
has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Group.

Function

The Board is responsible both for how the Company is managed and the
Company’s direction. Approval of the Board is required for the strategy of the
Group, major acquisition and disposal, major capital investment, dividend
policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, remuneration policy and
other major operational and financial matters. Day-to-day operations of the
Group are taken up by the Company’s management and the Company’s
investment manager.

The Board established schedule of matters specifically reserved to the Board
for its decision and those reserved for the management. The Board reviews
this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that it remains appropriate to the
needs of the Company.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, risk management, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc. The
Board held meetings from time to time whenever necessary.

The Board established procedures to enable Directors, upon reasonable

request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

TEEB®RSE ()

The Board held four regular board meetings at approximately quarterly interval ZEE @R AFER TN THESS @ 3% -
during the Year. Additional board meetings were held when necessary. Due %G EBRT - K- BHEEFLLHINEE
notice and board papers were given to all Directors prior to the meeting in B & 17 A QXA 2R IE FHHE B L DE ST
accordance with the Listing Rules and the CG Code. RBTEZANAEBESTELEABARE
et
The attendance records of the Directors for the Board and committee RARNFEANEEZR CTEH LELEH
mestings and the general mestings for the Year are as follows: FEREAEZHFE aaﬁ PN
No. of meetings attended/No. of meetings held
HEEERE BTEERE
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEXg ERZEEET FHMEEE REZEE BREXE
Directors 2=
Executive Director BITES
Cheng Hairong (Chairman) KE%E(EE) 5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
i A i A
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Lau Tom Ko Yuen (Deputy Chairman) 215 & (83 /%) 4/5 N/A 1/1 N/A 1/1
T iE A T iE A
INEDs BYKBITES
Feng Nien Shu L 5/5 2/2 11 11 11
Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard kR 5/5 2/2 1/1 N/A 1/1
i A
Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HEER 5/5 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1
T iE A
Total number of meetings R E 8T
held during the Year CHAH 5 2 1 1 1

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as the codes of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors and by relevant employees of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the
Company, that they fully complied with the Model Code and its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKE (B)

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise, there
are three board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee formed under the Board, with each
performing different functions.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard, Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard.

The role and function of the Audit Committee include:

— to serve as a focal point for communication between other directors
and the auditor in respect of the duties relating to financial and other
reporting, internal controls, audits, and such other matters as the Board
may determine from time to time.

— to assist the Board in fulfilling its responsibility by providing an
independent review and supervision of financial reporting, by satisfying
themselves as to the effectiveness of the internal controls of the Group

and the adequacy of the audits.

—  to review the appointment of auditor on an annual basis including the
review of the audit scope and approval of the audit fees.

—  to review the annual and interim financial statements prior to their
approval by the Board, and recommend application of accounting

policies and changes to the financial reporting requirements.

—  to ensure continuing auditor objectivity and to safeguard independence
of the Company’s auditor.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:

— to review the financial statements for Year 2018 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2019;

—  to review of the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company;
and

—  toreview the independence of auditor.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Nien
Shu and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard, and the deputy chairman of the
Company, namely Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr. Feng Nien Shu.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include formulation of
the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the Board the annual
remuneration policy, and determination of the remuneration of the executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model under the
CG Code to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Director and senior management. The
Directors are remunerated with reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’s performance and current
market situation.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:
—  toreview of the remuneration policy and package; and

—  to approve the remuneration of the executive Director and review the
remuneration of non-executive Directors.

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the Year are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely Mr.
Cheng Hairong, and two INEDs, namely Mr. Feng Nien Shu and Ms. Wong
Lai Kin, Elsa. The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng Hairong.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, formulating relevant procedures
for nomination of Directors, identifying qualified individuals to become
members of the Board and making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKE (B)

Directors or Shareholders, in accordance to the Bye-Laws of the Company,
may nominate candidate for appointment as Director. When assessing
candidates for directorship, the nomination committee will take into
consideration the skills, experience, education background, professional
knowledge, personal integrity, board diversity and potential contribution to the
Company of the proposed candidates. The proposed candidates should
meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules.
Potential candidates for INED should also meet the independence criteria set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be
recommended to the Board for approval.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the Year:
—  toreview the structure, size and composition of Board; and

—  toreview the policy and procedures for nomination of Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which sets out
the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Board will review
such objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives. The Company will also
take into consideration its own specific needs from time to time in determining
the optimum composition of the Board.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the Systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. The Systems are designed to manage rather that eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design, implementation and

monitoring of the Systems and the Board oversees the management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Risk Management System

The Group adopted a risk management policy which sets out the structure of
the risk management, responsibility between Directors and management of
the Group, and the procedures on the risk management of the Group.

The Board identified risks in accordance with the business nature of the
Group. For those significant risks identified, the management will prepare
relevant policies and procedures for the daily operation of the Group.
Management will monitor the significant risk during the operation and report
to the Board on the effectiveness of the risk management system on a regular
basis. Weakness identified in the risk management system will be remediated
as soon as possible.

Internal Control System

Internal control systems were set up according to the operations of the Group
which cover the financial, operational and compliance aspects of the Group.
Relevant policies and procedures have been prepared for the daily operation
of the management. Internal audit consultant will review the effectiveness of
the internal control systems on rotational basis with each system to be
reviewed at least once in every three years. The internal audit consultant will
report the review results to the audit committee and Board twice a year.

Specific to the dissemination of inside information, the Group has an inside
information disclosure policy and procedures which set out procedures on
the dissemination of inside information. An inside information disclosure
committee has been set up to manage the dissemination of the inside
information. Whenever there is inside information, the inside information
disclosure committee will make recommendation to the Board for the
approval of disseminating the inside information. The internal audit consultant
will review the effectiveness of this internal control system and report to the
Board for remedial action if weakness were identified.

Internal Audit

An independent third party with extensive experience in reviewing internal
control system of listed companies has been engaged to perform the internal
audit function of the Group. The scope of internal audit will be determined at
the start of each year. As part of the ongoing review of the Systems, the
internal audit reviews the Systems, makes recommendation and reports to
the audit committee and the Board twice a year.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKE (B)

Review and effectiveness of the Systems

The management provided confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of
the Systems which cover the Year on a quarterly basis. As mentioned above,
the internal audit consultant reviews the Systems and reports to the audit
committee and the Board twice a year.

In addition to the above, the Board in its annual review further considered
that: (i) there are no changes in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in the business and external
environment; (i) the scope and quality of the ongoing monitoring of the
Systems by the management, internal audit consultant and external auditor
are adequate; (iii) the extent and frequency of communicating the monitoring
results to the Board are sufficient; (iv) there is no significant control failure or
weakness; and (v) the processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance are effective.

The Board, through its review on the regular confirmation from the
management and the internal audit function, concluded that the Systems
were effective and adequate. It also considered that the resources, staff
qualifications and experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training
programmes and budget provided were sufficient.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Messrs. Grant Thornton
Hong Kong Limited during the Year for auditing and non-auditing services is
analysed as below:
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Auditing for the Year REEFE 2 ZHE 850,000
Non-auditing: IR
Agreed-upon procedures on Preliminary Results REEMFEBERMHZ 15,000
Announcement for the Year HERF
Agreed-upon procedures on Continuing AEEREBEHERIZHERR 15,000

Connected Transactions for the Year
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
PREPARING THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing the
financial statements. The statement of the auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 44 to 49.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, the Shareholders, holding at the
date of deposit of the written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company,
may require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so.

Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. The written requisition should be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the head office of the Company, specifying the shareholders’
contact details and the resolution intended to be put forward at general
meeting.

For including a resolution to propose a person for election as a Director at
general meeting, Shareholders are requested to follow the Bye-Laws of the
Company. A written notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting of the
Company for which such notice is given of his intention to propose such
person for election and also a written notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head
office of the Company provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such notices are given, shall be at least seven days and that the period
for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than the day after the
dispatch of the notice of the general meeting of the Company appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The written notice must state that person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules. The procedures for
Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director is posted on the
Company’s website.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
TEERKE (B)

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may at
any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that
such information is publically available. Shareholders may also make enquiries
to the Board by writing to the company secretary at the Company’s head
office in Hong Kong at Suite 2711, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The objective of Shareholder communication is to provide Shareholders with
detailed information about the Company so that they can exercise their rights
as Shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure Shareholders
are kept well informed of key business imperatives. These include annual
general meeting, annual report, various notices, announcements and
circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been read out by the chairman at
the general meeting.

At the general meetings held during the Year, a separate resolution was
proposed by the chairman in respect of each separate issue, including re-
election of the Directors and were voted by poll. The Company appointed the
share registrar of the Company to act as scrutineer of the poll to ensure that
votes cast are properly counted and recorded. The results of the poll were
announced in accordance with the Listing Rules.

During the Year, there had been no change in the Company‘s constitutional
documents.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -8 RERRE

SCOPE

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

The principal activities of the Group is investment activities in listed and
unlisted investments and other related financial assets. This report covers the
principal activities of the Company and its principal subsidiaries for the Year.
[t focuses on the aspects which have been identified as material to the
principal activities of the Group.

The environmental and social areas are addressed in this report and the
governance area is addressed in the corporate governance report as set out
on pages 29 to 38 of this annual report.

OVERVIEW

The approach and strategy of the Group for the environmental and social
areas is 1o raise the awareness of the employees in these areas which turn
into action during the daily operation of the Group with the objectives: (i) to
cause less harm to the environment and contribute to the environmental
friendly eco-system of the world; (ii) to be a responsible employer; and (iii) to
enhance the wealth of the stakeholders.

In order to achieve the above objectives, the Board aware the importance of
and acknowledge the responsibility for the strategy and reporting the
environmental and social areas of the Group.

Aspects which are considered material and in high priorities in the
environmental and social areas are highlighted as below.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE -HEREREE ()

ENVIRONMENTAL

The principal activities of the Group is investment activities in listed and
unlisted investments and other related financial assets. The use of resources
of the Group are mainly electricity and papers for office and reporting
purposes. The major emission of greenhouse gas is carbon dioxide through
the consumption of electricity and papers.

Emissions and use of resources

It is the policy of the Group to minimise the use of resources in order to
reduce the emission of carbon dioxide. The resources consumption and
emission are listed as below:

AEBZETBEH/N LT RIFLTEREMN
REMHBEREENRELY  AEEH
ROER ITERENAEETNEM  RIER
SRR HRE N RARNBED A
HROREREBIER _SALHK-

FHRERAEIR

FAEENBREAZERIERERAREZ
SRR E - BIRBEE LI REHT A0
T

Resources consumption/Carbon dioxide emission Unit

BERERE —GtBmERE B

Resources consumption &R E#E

Electricity consumption (indirect consumption) kWh 4,994
B ERE (BB T B

Paper consumption tonnes 0.11
R IE i

Carbon dioxide emission (indirect emissions) — &1k itk HE ki & (42 BE k)

(i) Electricity tCOe 3.95
)& —afeE s ()

(i) Paper consumption tCOe 0.54
(i) 4L 3R B ¥ —a kiR E = (HE)

The water consumption of the Group is minimum and immaterial. In view of
the business nature, the Group is not aware of any significant generation of
hazardous waste.

In view of the principal activities of the Group, the Group is not aware of any
relevant laws and regulations in relation to environmental protection that have
significant impact on the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Impact on use of resources

In order to minimise the impact on environment, it is the aim of the Group to
minimise the use of resources in order to reduce the emission of carbon
dioxide. The Group has the following measures for achieving this aim:

1. switching off unnecessary lighting and electronic appliances (e.g.
computer) in order to reduce the electricity consumption;

2. using FSC certified paper for printing of interim and annual reports;

3. encouraging the employees to use electronic means for record keeping
in order to reduce the use of paper;

4. encouraging employees to use one-side printed recycle paper for
printing draft;

5. using air-conditioning with thermostats to maintain optimum
temperature for both occupants’ comfort and energy saving; and

6. assessing the compliance of environmental, social and governance
practice of investee when considering future investments.

SOCIAL

Employment

Employees is the most valuable asset to the Group. It is the policy of the
Group to employ person which is suitable to the position with equal
opportunity. Competitive remuneration package will be provided for the
employees. The Group will also comply with the relevant employment laws
and regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)
RIE -HEREREE ()

At Year End Date, the Group had 6 employees with ages ranging from 38 to
63 who have worked in the Group ranging from within 1 year to about 10
years. The distribution of gender of the employee of the Company is shown in
the table below:

REHEB  AEBEFBEFHRN T38E635HY
BEAAEBIENTFIFEFE10FLH TX
PIE AR REBMERI D

Number of Number of
male staff female staff Turnover rate

B¢ z
As at S EE®E EE®E K=
1 January 2019 20191 A1H 4 1 N/A
3@
Year End Date F4H 4 2 0%

The laws on labour govern the employment of the Group which affect the
remuneration and retirement benefits payable to the employees of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with employment related laws
and regulations that have significant impact on the Group during the Year.

Health and safety

It is the policy of the Group to provide a healthy and safety working
environment to the employees. The Group will maintain its office premises
from time to time in order to provide a safety working place for the employees.
The Group also encourage employees to participate in recreational activities
organised by outside parties.

The laws on health and safety working environment governs the provision of a
healthy and safety working environment and compensation, if any, to the
employees of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to health and safety working environment during the
Year that have significant impact on the Group.

The Group regularly promotes employees’ occupational safety and health
good practice at work in the aspects of lighting condition, use of office
equipment, office safety, computer workstation design and working posture
through briefing and various communication channels, resulting in better

working environment quality.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (continued)

Development and training

On-the-job training and continuous professional development are important
elements to enhance the industry knowledge of the employees of the Group.
The Group encourage employees to attend training courses (e.g. Listing
Rules and accountancy related seminars) and reimbursement will be made by
the Group for those job-related training courses. Besides, the Group will
purchase relevant reference materials for the employees’ self-study.

Labour standards

It is the policy of the Group to comply with the relevant laws and regulations
which prohibit the employment of child and force labour.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to preventing child and forced labour during the Year
that have significant impact on the Group.

Supply chain management and product responsibility

The supply chain contributes only to a small part of the operation of the
Group which the Group has no policy on this area.

The Group does not have products or services provided to customers and
hence the product responsibility is not applicable to the Group.

Anti-corruption

The Group has a whistleblowing policy for employees reporting suspicious
cases to the top management of the Group or the Directors.

The laws on anti-corruption ensure the integrity of Directors and employees of
the Group in conducting the business activities of the Group.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to anti-corruption during the Year that have significant
impact on the Group.

Community investment

With base in Hong Kong and investments in Hong Kong and the PRC, the
Group had made donations to charitable organisations which focused on
charitable affairs for both Hong Kong and the PRC. In the future, the Group
will consider engaging charity or non-governmental organization for
volunteering and corporate social responsibility opportunities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B M % B HE

° Grant Thornton
H[E]
To members of

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Prosperity
Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 127, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matter that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
BEETSEE

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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BARETSEE

RREFFEASRBEAZHE N E XA H -
RREAFEG AR BERERNETRRER
MER ZEEFEARAZHUMEBFEREA
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How the Matter was Addressed in Our Audit
RPN BTNAEEEE

Valuation of the unlisted equity investment in Rakarta Limited (“Rakarta”)

R Rakarta Limited ([ Rakarta_|) #9 7 £ 7 J® 2 1% & 1 {8

We identified the valuation of unlisted equity investment in
Rakarta, which has been classified as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a key audit matter
due to the significant estimation uncertainty in determining the
fair value of the investment in Rakarta.
RZEA BN GEE W BRARFHERRIFE AR
feEEkm((HAFEFALMEE KR 2 S/ EEN
Rakarta3f F MR AR EMELS —BHAREFFE  RAAR
EERRakartaf IR E R FESRHNMEFTIRELEBEX

As disclosed in note 4 and note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’s investment in Rakarta, which is an
investment holding company with its subsidiary principally
engaged in zinc and lead mining in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) is measured at FVOCI. The fair value of
investment in Rakarta as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$29,706,000, which was determined with reference to the
valuation performed by independent qualified valuer with a fair
value loss of HK$20,382,000 adjusted to the investment
revaluation reserve during the year ended 31 December 2019.
The estimated future cash flows of Rakarta are highly dependent
on the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions used in
deriving the future cash flows, in particular the forecasted selling
price, discount rate, forecasted production volume and
marketability discount.

WM EMBRERMFIRMF16HER BEEERN
Rakarta (& —BHREER AR HMB AT EZRFEAR
HANE ([ B fe E 8 R ER) BIRER AT E A KM
2HEW = ° R2019F 12 A31 H + M Rakartaix & 2 A F
B 7329,706,0008 7L * I B2 EFB LA ERMLEMETZ
HEREBT YERHEE2019F12 A1 B EFE R FES
1820,382,000/% JT # £ X & & fih # # ° Rakarta 2 fi 57 K 2K
RenBTOBABRELERKEeREMBZEETAHE
WMABBELEBR LESHASE HEX BAEER
i T -

Management has reviewed the valuation of the investment in
Rakarta and considered the significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of the valuation are appropriate.

ERED BN N Rakartaz REFN - TR/ I EZER
TAIBEE ABIBERBRERAHE -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of an unlisted equity
investment classified as financial asset at FVOCI included:
AEZBMHEEE B EARATEFTAEMEZE NE 2
CHEEMIFELMRAKREHRENEF B

(i) Challenging the reasonableness of the significant inputs
and assumptions including the forecasted selling price,
discount rate, forecasted production volume and
marketability discount adopted by the valuer and
management of the Group and comparing them to
external available market data, such as historical trend in
price of ore, future outlook in mining industry in the PRC,
as well as the weighted average cost of capital of
comparable companies in the same industry.

) BREZHABBERBRRESSE  SEMGERMDR
EEBEREMKACRAEE MEXLBEAES
R iigm BT - 7 0E = H Al R AN S E A T 5
HiE NMBAERAERBE RARPEBEBEAA =
AR B —1T AN A] L& R AR N T35 & AR KR o

(ii) Evaluating whether the estimated future cash flows and
annual production capacity of the subsidiary of Rakarta
are in line with the business plans formulated by the
management of Rakarta.

(i)  FHERakartafy B R BIMEEHARRIR G IR E R FERRE
Rekarta® 12 /€ Fr il E RO 5T 8125 — 2 °

(i) Assessing the competence, independence and objectivity
of the valuer by assessing their qualification and valuation
experience in similar industry.

(i) BB EEEMHERRARBUTENGBELR
AR EERMMEMMEE N  BUMREEM -

(iv)  Reperforming sensitivity analysis by evaluating the potential
impact of reasonably possible changes in the key
assumptions.

(v) FAHEEZRZHEIEA G E BUERK R E
ETHRED T -

wE - UE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters.
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We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

14 May 2020

Lam Yau Hing
Practising Certificate No.: P06622
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or

Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GReBEaRHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #,Z=2019F12 A31H [t E[E

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
g =E FET FAT
Gross proceeds from operations REFMBREHEE 6 11,752 22,455
Revenue A 6 3,313 4,702
Other gains and losses H Wz & & 18 7 (59,407) (66,768)
Bank interest income T A B A 258 217
Administrative expenses TERAXZ (11,217) (13,609)
Investment management expenses KEEERY 24 (7,200) (7,200)
Finance costs B 75 Bk AN 8 (4,243) (4,546)
Loss before income tax BRETISBI AT B 1B 10 (78,496) (87,204)
Income tax expense Fris i X 9 - —
Loss for the year attributable to owners EARBEEANELFEERSE
of the Company (78,496) (87,204)
Other comprehensive expense: Hih2mEBAX:
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently BE# F & E# 7 EE 1B = 1Y
to profit or loss: b= =
Fair value loss on an financial assets at fair value 22 (& 5T A H b 2 & U 55
through other comprehensive income ZERMEEATEERE (20,382) (7,938)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AAREEAEEEE
attributable to owners of the Company 2>HEBEZAE (98,878) (95,142)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic (HK cents) — EARGEAL) 13 (6.48) (7.20)

The notes on pages 56 to 127 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BB R R

As at 31 December 2019 72019512 831H

2019 2018
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Mg =E FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets IRBEE
Plant and equipments B N 5% 14 619 1,087
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15 490 —
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFER AR MEE Y
other comprehensive income LB REE 16(a) 29,706 50,088
Financial assets at fair value through EATFEFABERZ
profit or loss TREE 16(b) 21,222 154,191
52,037 205,366
Current assets mEEE
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss CREE 16(c) 106,100 14,348
Other receivables H i pE W BR IR 17 6,240 27,629
Cash held by securities brokers BEKEFAEZES 18 2,280 5,197
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 18 26,448 45,738
141,068 92,912
Current liabilities REBEE
Loan from a securities broker REBHELZER 19 49,884 46,185
Other payable and accruals H Ao T BRIB M FEAT AR 1A 1,500 12,000
Lease liabilities HEBRE 20 330 =
51,714 58,185
Net current assets REBEESE 89,354 34,727
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERARBAS 141,391 240,093
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
REBHARR K (E)
As at 31 December 2019 2019512 831H

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
g =E THT T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 20 176 —
Net assets EEFHAE 141,215 240,093
Capital and reserves BEAXRREE
Share capital % X 22 30,283 30,283
Reserves s 110,932 209,810
Total equity B A E 141,215 240,093
Net Asset Value per Share (HK$) EREEFEGET) 21 0.12 0.20
Cheng Hairong X /& &8 Lau Tom Ko Yuen 2|5 E
Director % Director %

The notes on pages 56 to 127 are an integral part of these consolidated £56ZF 1278 2 Wi Ik Air & M B HE 2 —
financial statements. o e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

RERDBEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;Z=20194F12 H31 8 [ E[E

Investment
Share Share revaluation Contributed Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve surplus losses equity
REEMH
BAR BRORE ®E BB ZiEHEE RALE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAB T FAT FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Note)
(M%)
At 1 January 2018 R2018%F 1 A1H 30,283 192,895 3,980 290,081 (182,004) 335,235
Loss for the year FEEBA — = = = (87,204)  (87,204)
Other comprehensive H ftt % & 7%
expense
Fair value loss on financial 3% A (&5t A H 4
assets at FVOCI 2HEHWZE 2T F
BEATEEE = = (7,988) - - (7,938)
Total comprehensive FE 2 HB X A%
expense for the year — — (7,938) — (87,204) (95,142)
At 31 December 2018 42018412831 H
and 1 January 2019 % 20191 H1H 30,283 192,895 (8,958) 290,081 (269,208) 240,093
Loss for the year FEEE — = = = (78,496)  (78,496)
Other comprehensive & it 2 [E f§ 3%
expense
Fair value loss on financial 22 B 5T A H1th
assets at FVOCI 2EKE R
BENTEEE = = (20,382) - - (20,382)
Total comprehensive FEEERAZBE
expense for the year — — (20,382) — (78,496) (98,878)
At 31 December 2019 42019412 H31H 30,283 192,895 (24,340) 290,081 (847,704) 141,215

Note: Contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the issued shares and the aggregate of the nominal value of the share
capital and share premium of GRIH at the time when GRIH was acquired by the
Company pursuant to a group reorganisation completed in 2001; and the excess
of the consideration paid over the nominal value of the Shares repurchased and

cancelled in 2011.

The notes on pages 56 to 127 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

D o

MiaE : AR E 2 B SRR ER 2 IRE &R K 2001
FER EBBARARRKRBEE HTR
DEERSRERZRAEE RO EER
BeEf: MENKEBHR220MFEER
A Z R E{EMER S -

FOE12TEZMEBKRAGATBHRERZ —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #,Z=2019F12 A31H [t E[E

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
B & FExT T T
Cash flow from operating activities RETEHBRERE
Loss before income tax B PT 15 0 Al 5 18 (78,496) (87,204)
Adjustments for: AT REEL FHE
Depreciation of owned plant and equipments BEMENZEITE 456 600
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 244 —
Loss on written off of plant and equipments WEmE kEiE 2 BE 12 -
Net exchange losses/(gain) FIE K 1R (M) 7 (931)
Interest expenses FERX 8 4,243 4,546
Interest income FE MW A (258) (217)
Dividend income % S A (3,313) (4,702)
Net fair value loss of financial assets at BAFEFTAEBRZZ
fair value through profit or loss CHEEATEFER 59,330 67,766
Operating loss before working capital changes BEESEEA KA EIE (17,705) (20,142)
Decrease in other receivables A 8 W BR IE R 4 1,860 817
(Decrease)/increase in other payable and accruals HAMENBREE R EETERIE
CRL) /1 (10,500) 3,775
Net Proceeds/(Payment) from disposal/purchases of H%& #E iz A FEz A
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss BRZeMEEZME
SRIE(F30) F5 (7,975) 14,165
Cash used in operations KEFTHR S (34,320) (1,389)
Dividend income A% 2 WA 2,625 4,702
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities LT B (FTH) B s
L HERE (31,695) 3,317
Cash flow from investing activities REZBHMEREERE
Interest received RPN 258 217
Payment for purchases of plant and equipments BERE MEE TR - (16)
Cash received for settlement of earnest money HEEZIREER 10,000 =
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HERAFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss — capital in nature SREEZFIERIEA
—BEARME 2 =
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEEREZ
investments Fr18 5k 18 - 32,423
Net cash from investing activities RETE TS5 2 FHE 10,260 32,624
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
RERERER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 ;%2019 12 31 H L F[E

2019 2018
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B & FHBT T T
Cash flow from financing activities MEZEERERE
Proceed from loan from a securities broker REBHELZERZ
B2 1E 14,954 4,546
Repayment of loan from a securities broker EBEEREBLELZER (11,255) (9,460)
Payment of lease liabilities TRHEEEE (228) —
Interest paid 2 8 8 (4,243) (4,546)
Net cash used in financing activities HEZETAE S FE (772) (9,460)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReREEELHEE
cash equivalents CR D), EmFEE (22,207) 26,481
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January M1A1TRZReREE
REEAE 50,935 24,454
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December M12A31AZREREE
HELEH 28,728 50,935
Represented by 5
Bank balances and cash RITAER RIS 26,448 45,738
Cash held by securities brokers BAREFEZR® 2,280 5,197
28,728 50,935

The notes on pages 56 to 127 are an integral part of these consolidated 256 E 127 B 2 M sk K A 4R & B 15 K 2 —
financial statements. oo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #,Z=2019F12 A31H [t E[E

1.

General Information

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The addresses of its registered office and principal
place of business of the Company were Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and Suite 2711, Shui On Centre, 6-8
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 28.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were approved for
issue by the Board on 14 May 2020.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by
the HKICPA and the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for the financial assets at FVTPL
and financial assets at FVOCI which are measured at fair value.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

When assessing whether the Group has power over the entity,
only substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a subsidiary in
the consolidated financial statements from the date it gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. FESHHEHME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 22 MERBZ2EE @

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and
losses on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for impairment
from the Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary
to ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the subsidiary is
held for sale or included in a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to
reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at the reporting
date. All dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. TESHHEEHRE @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

23 HNE]E

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated entities,
foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the reporting date retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange rates
at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation currency, have
been converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into HK$ at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted into the HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from this
procedure have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. FESHHEHME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

24 BMERR®E

2.4 Plant and equipments

Plant and equipments are initially recognised at acquisition cost,
including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to
the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the Group’s management.
They are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

the shorter of the term
of the lease or 3 years

Leasehold improvement

Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 3 years
Computer equipments 3 years

Estimates of residual value, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. FESHHEHME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments 25 €mI A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets
at FVTPL) and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liabilities and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liabilities, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at FVOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. FESHHEHME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 €@ T A wm

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)
A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost
and debt instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. TESHHERE @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 €@ T A um

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are not
subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent a
recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the revenue in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVOCI or designated as FVOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains and losses” in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. FESHHEME 4@

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 €@ T A wm

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for ECL will be recognised on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including other
receivables, bank balances and cash held by securities brokers).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-months ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all financial assets, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12-months ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which
case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M A ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B R R M A ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEEFHEHBEw

Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include loan from a securities
broker, other payable and accruals and leases liabilities.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are initially measured
at fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for transaction
costs unless the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

All interest-related charges, if applicable are reported in profit or
loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note 2.7.
Borrowings (include loan from a securities broker)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group

has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. FESHHEHME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial instruments (Continued) 25 €@ T A wm

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Other payable and accruals

Other payable and accruals are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to accumulated losses.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and securities brokers and short
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents include cash held
by securities brokers and bank balances and cash.

Leases

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019,
the Group considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A
lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys
the right to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply this
definition, the Group assesses whether the contract meets three
key evaluations which are whether:

—  the contract contains an identified asset, which is either
explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by
being identified at the time the asset is made available to
the Group;

—  the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset
throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and

—  the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess
whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what
purpose’ the asset is used throughout the period of use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. FESHHEME 4@

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued) 27 HEw

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee
(Continued)

For contracts that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease and non-lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-
use asset and a lease liability on the consolidated statement of
financial position. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost,
which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at the end of
the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (net of any lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line
basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the
lease term unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease
liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. FESHHEHME @

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued) 27 HEw

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(Continued)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a
lessee (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable payments
based on an index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
the option to terminate.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for
lease payments made and increased for interest cost on the
lease liability. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or
lease modification, or if there are changes in in-substance fixed
payments.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-
use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use
asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these leases
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position, right-of-use
assets have been presented in separate line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
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2. FESHHEME 4@

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.7 Leases (Continued) 27 HEw

Policy applicable before 1 January 2019

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged
to profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the
time pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Provisions, contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value of money is
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

material,

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liability unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefit is remote.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. The amount of share
capital recognised is determined using the nominal value and any
related transaction costs are deducted from the share premium.

2.10 Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment have been established.

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019

2. FESTHEREBE @

2.8

BERIARERE
AN B FEBESHEAERE

BEECEESHEE) BREZET
Al g BB = ING - REEH
L ﬁﬁ%"’JTsEiﬁlfﬁn‘l‘ Jﬁﬁnu 1%"

MREEZHREEREN  BES
NAZREEHERMTE XL ZRE
N

MEBRBONEREALENL
RAEARRE B2 REMG -

ﬁﬁ@@ﬂ%

i KSLT#EZ,%@%KT'JE/FEZT%’IE
BIE BABHETARERIA
BE-ARAEZEE(EFRER
BREFE -EXZEAEETE

TEREHIARREHF2HLERT
Z‘Tﬁ@rﬁ)?ﬁ/ﬁ?&&ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁ

 JE B B 4S8 B B 25 2 R RE
1RAK - BIYE RIS ©
29 R
TERRDERAER BEERRA
SENRABBEEE - TR e
ZRZGKAERMDBEEFRR -
210 W AR

BE Z BB AT BE E A A5 R
Z B RAET I T IARERR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. FESHHEME 4@

2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

211 EERE

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and the Company’s
investment in subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing. They
are tested for impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time
value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent from those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at the cash-
generating unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash
generating unit, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of disposal, or
value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised. A reversal of such
impairment is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises unless that asset is carried at revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for the revalued
amount.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

2.12 Employee benefits 212 EERTA

Retirement benefits scheme

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ salaries.

Payments to the MPF Scheme are recognised as expense when
employees have rendered service entiting them to the
contributions.

The Group’s obligations under MPF Scheme are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible for
the entitlement of long service payments under the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (“Employment Ordinance”) in the event of
the termination of their employment under the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. A provision is recognised
in respect of the probable future long service payments expected
to be made. The provision is based on the best estimate of the
probable future payments which have been earned by the
employees from their service to the Group to the end of the
reporting period.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Continued)

213 fEE A
e B S O A B S8

214 5B 2 BT R E

2.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.

2.14 Accounting for income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to the
current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense in profit
or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on temporary
differences at the reporting date between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period the liability is settled or the
asset realised, provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FEEFHEHBEw

Policies (Continued)

2.14 Accounting for income tax (Continued) 214 TR 28R E @)
Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised in EERELAEXAGEEHRER
profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or directly in PR siiEE MmN SR
equity if they relate to items that are charged or credited to other ENERNBRSETAZIEE B
comprehensive income or directly in equity. AR EMme2mkss BEERER

PR -

2.15 Related parties 215@@E R
For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a HZERAMBRERME  FEMU
party is considered to be related to the Group if: TEHEEZATHERESERNERS

B
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s @ MBI TAL AlZALH
family and if that person, ZATZEFEAREBE G A
8
() has control or joint control over the Group; () EHlkHEREHRE
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEBEBEERTE:
=,
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of iy BAKEFXAKEETQ
the Group or of a parent of the Group. AZEEERENXE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

2. Summary of Significant Accounting 2. FESHHEHME @
Policies (continued)
2.15 Related parties (Continued) 215B@EF @)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions () fHEFE T FAEM 15F Bl Z
applies: BEREAEEEHE
()  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZERHEASEBR —
group. SEZKBERT
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (ii) —HERAS —ETE
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member ZHENA KA E D
of a group of which the other entity is a member). ¥ (B —EBAEH
BETHRKEARZEZE R
A EEREIZKER
al) e
(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) EBEEEAEEHYAR/R-—
same third party. FZRZ2EERE-
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy —HEBARF=FEHE
other entity is an associate of the third entity. ZEENE mMB—F
SRAF=—HER
NG
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the v) EBERAAEENHEASE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity BEREZEREMES
related to the Group. M 25 5% 3 2 BB AR A F
2l o
(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a vy EEZ@AFTHEBAL
person identified in (a). Pl s 2 RE S o
(viij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (viiy R @) A BT & Bl A & &
over the entity or is a member of the key EREEATENNE
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent ZEB(XZE “5\ §8 2 &
of the entity). RENZEZEEEK
B
(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a (viiy MAKREHAEEFA
part, provides key management personnel services AR EEEE ABR
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. BZERKEMES
ZERKERTA -
Close members of the family of a person are those family H_ ATz aHEBRAIZEZ
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced ATEHEEETEEINRNESTH
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. REZANTHEZBBRIEKE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

3. New and Amended HKFRSs 3. ¥

3.1 New and amended HKFRSs that are
effective for annual periods beginning on
1 January 2019

In the Year, the Group has applied for the first time the following
new and amended HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

HK (IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Among these new and amended HKFRSs, other than the effect
of adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” noted below, the other new
and amended HKFRSs do not have material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

3. New and Amended HKFRSSs (continued)

3.1 New and amended HKFRSs that are

effective for annual periods beginning on
1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” along with three
Interpretations (HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”, HK(SIC)-Int 15 “Operating
Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”). HKFRS 16
has been applied using the modified retrospective approach, with
the cumulative effect of adopting HKFRS 16 being recognised in
equity as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits for the current period. Comparative information have not
been restated.

The Group do not have any outstanding lease commitment as at
31 December 2018, the adoption of the HKFRS 16 only results in
change in accounting policy of lease as detailed in note 2.7 and
do not have material impact on how the results and financial
position for the current and prior periods have been prepared
and presented.

HEItR 2 F
el R &1
& 2 8l ()

BEEMBHRELENFIHEIAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

3. New and Amended HKFRSSs (continued)

3.2 Issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs have been
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted
early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
® Effective date not yet determined
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
New and amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2, the Directors are required to make various
judgements estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value measurement of unlisted equity
investment

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of this investment was
remeasured at HK$29,706,000 (2018: HK$50,088,000) with a fair value
loss of HK$20,382,000 (2018: HK$7,938,000) adjusted to investment
revaluation reserve. Judgement and estimation are required in
establishing the relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs
thereof. Changes in estimations relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of the unlisted equity investment.

Recoverability of earnest money deposit paid
for a potential investment

In determining whether the earnest money deposit paid for a potential
investment is impaired requires an estimation of the ECL. In assessing
the ECL, the management performed credit analysis on the background
and creditworthiness of the potential vendor to which the earnest
money has been paid as disclosed in note 29.4. The provision of ECL
is sensitive to changes in estimates, including the probability of default
and loss given default. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of the earnest money deposit is HK$4,870,000 (2018: HK$25,000,000).

B 52 & 5t {4 5t & F
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MARRERE  AIREHR R 2 BIE &R
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UTRRBERR BEAREHT —
VREEAZEERBERAELRE
ANPEZBBRKZ EERE A MG
AT EERRZ EEZRIR -

FEHRARE AP EG
%

R2019F 128310 ' WHEKEE 2 A FE
B ¥ 5T & /429,706,000 JT (20184 :
50,088,000/ jt )+ W E 5t & FE B E
20,382,00078 7T (2018 4F : 7,938,000 /8
TABRERESHFEE - NI MA@ G
B B it & 7 B 8 A (B B 7B (B T & (i
e REREMA e 2L
MRAEE 2 2HRAFE -

REBERESNABEEZA
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EEBERF TEERIZNE24H
BESNBES2BEEAZESERE
BHTEESNM BHEEEEREY
B2 BB AHRE BREENRERR
EABLR - R2019F12A31H  #E
% 2 Bk M & %4,870,0007%8 7T (20184 :
25,000,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements (continued)

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to the tax losses of HK$360,911,000 (2018:
HK$282,408,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future taxable profits generated are more than expected, or there
are changes in facts and circumstances which result in revisions of
future taxable profits estimation, a material recognition of deferred tax
asset may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such recognition takes place.

5. Segment Information

HKFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the CODM, being the managing director of the Company,
in order to allocate resources and to assess performance. The CODM
reviews the Group’s investment portfolio and profit or loss as a whole,
which is determined in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies, for performance assessment, accordingly no operating
segment information is presented other than the entity-wide
disclosures.

Geographic information

The Group’s revenue is generated from, and non-current assets are
located in, Hong Kong.

Dividend income from the Group’s investments contributing over 10%
of the Group’s total revenue during the year is as follows:

4. AR ETRAEHw

Fris®t

R2019F 12 A31 8 » B B X K & A
MEAABEA R ERHEBIS
360,911,0007 7T (2018 4F : 282,408,000
B EREEREEE - BEFBEEE
CEBEENTBREABRELAESE
R T o M PTE S Z B R KRER
FEMZRESR KEERBREME
B - LA BUE 2R 2R FE AR B s B S AT 0 A
AEERRENRELERIBEE  WRNE
HER 2 HEEER P ER -

5. 2 B&EH

FEAEMBHRERANESRERREME
ERERREBARRAREFALE)E
i 2 AKRER D 2 AEBREELEH
AEEDE U EEREFERRA-

BREARERIAEEA ZERERE
MakaMBREBEASE 25
BREE) AETRRFAGE Bt B2
ERMEEIN TERIIGESREHR -

3 &

AREBZWARBEETE MEFRDE
ETFLRERE °

RERERNEAEEBKRA10%IA EZ A
SERERSWALT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Investee A BEZIEERNAA 3,111 4,442
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

Gross Proceeds from Operations/ 6.
Revenue

The following table shows the gross proceeds from disposal of financial
assets at FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax purposes and the
revenue of the Group which represents the dividend income:

%Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁtlﬁ%@%ﬁ/ﬂ&

TRETHERAFEFABRZER
BEGIBRBEME RENE) 2MBER
HEBARKER 2R - HEREWA :

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Gross proceeds from disposal of financial assets HER A FEFABZZ L RE
at FVTPL which are revenue in nature for tax E@MBEEns slstE) 2
purposes FriS R IH R % 8,439 17,753
Dividend income f& B WA 3,313 4,702
11,752 22,455

Revenue represents dividend income of HK$3,313,000 (2018:
HK$4,702,000).

W A 35 B& & Uk A 3,313,000/ 7t (2018
£ 1 4,702,000/ 7T) °

Other Gains and Losses 7. Hhlm R EE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR FHET
Fair value changes of financial assets at FVTIPL R A FEA ABHZ 22 REER
(Note) & &8 (B 5E)
— capital in nature for tax purpose —RRBEmE REAME (3,838) (14,712)
— revenue in nature for tax purpose — BB E AlEEE (55,492) (563,054)
(59,330) (67,766)
Net exchange (losses)/gain SFIEH (B5iE), s (77) 998
(59,407) (66,768)

Note: The fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL comprised of net
realised losses for disposal of financial assets at FVTPL of HK$1,858,000
(2018: HK$54,105,000) and unrealised losses of HK$57,472,000 (2018:
HK$13,661,000) (note 23).

PR AFEFABRZEREERATE
EHAELERAFEFTABRSEZ S
& E 2 B 23 ¥ 55 181,858,000 T
(20184 : 54,105,000 7T ) & & & 35 &5
857,472,000 7T (20184 : 13,661,000

B (ffaE23)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

8. Finance Costs

8. MIRA

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Interest on loan from a securities broker REBHELZERZHE 4,201 4,546
Interest expenses of lease liabilities HEBBZAMERX 42 =
4,243 4,546

9. Income Tax Expense

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made for both years since

there was no assessable profit for both years.

Reconciliation between tax expenses and accounting loss at applicable

9. FRBRHMAX

B 7 R B 0 R M8 4F /2 1 R A A R AR R

WA M ER B AN EBAE L B

HERMEFEZRAREGER

tax rates: 2
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FAT
Loss before income tax MRS AT E 18 (78,496) (87,204)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% &S H B 43 B B R 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) (20184 : 16.5%) 5T & 2 118 (12,952) (14,389)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for MR E T ENRFASZ 2
tax purpose MG &8 601 2,529
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose  FL &t 7 B B9 S st Fi Ug A 2
MR8 (602) (976)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZMIEBB 2B E 12,953 12,836

Income tax expense

P15 1 5 X -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

9. Income Tax Expense (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$360,911,000 (2018: HK$282,408,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses are subject to
the agreement from the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department and
may be carried forward indefinitely.

There is no other significant unprovided deferred taxation at the end of
the reporting periods.

10. Loss Before Income Tax

Loss before income tax has been arrived at after charging:

9. FriE%iF X

R2019F 12 A31H " "&EE 2 K & A
i 1B & 18360,911,000/8 JT (20184 :
282,408,000/ 7T ) A A A K 6 K 2K &
F o MR R OE FRE A TER - R
ERRAELEHBEEE - MBEEBEBAFS
BRI BRE AR ERBAR LS -

R ER - NEE L EEAMECRE
BIEER IR

10. RFTEH A G B

BRATIS TR IEE Hks T3 &R

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FE R FAT
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (@ EIRT(BEESHMH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TENEMEF 3,992 3,599
Discretionary bonus &) 1% 7E AT 286 275
Contributions to defined contribution REHETBAREEZ
retirement plans = 199 181
4,477 4,055
(b) Other items (b) HAn1EH
Depreciation included in administrative THRAXEBE TZ2HE :
expenses:
— Owned assets —BEEE 456 600
— Right-of-use assets —EREEE 244 —
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B 850 1,071
Loss on written off of plant and equipments s E kRG22 EE 12 —
Short term lease with lease term less than HHLR12EAZRBHEE
12 months/Operating lease charges in MEZIKEHEE R
respect of premises 600 2,036
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

11. Directors’ Emolument

Emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were as follows:

MEEMS

ENXENEEZMSMT :

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
BIRBERGE
we FERFEM = ot
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T F&T F&T
Year ended 31 December #,£2019%F12H31H
2019 IEEE
Name of Director EENS
Executive Director and HITEFERESF
managing director: AEAKTE -
Mr. Cheng Hairong BRI E - - - -
Non-executive Director: FEHTEF -
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen ASREE - - - -
INEDs: BIIHBRITESF :
Mr. Feng Nien Shu e E 80 - - 80
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard BIIKRELE 80 - - 80
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa =EERLZL 80 - - 80
240 - - 240
Year ended 31 December HZE=2018%F 12 A31H
2018 IEEE
Name of Director EENS
Executive Director and HITEFFRESE
managing director: ABAETE
Mr. Cheng Hairong P 5 5T A = - - -
Non-executive Director: FHITEFE
Mr. Lau Tom Ko Yuen ZlmREE = = = —
INEDs: BIHRITESE :
Mr. Feng Nien Shu WM EE 70 — — 70
Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard B JK R 5 4 70 — = 70
Ms. Wong Lai Kin, Elsa HERLL+ 70 — — 70
210 — — 210
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

11. Directors’ Emolument (continued) M1.EEWE @
The executive Director's emolument shown above was for his service EXFIRZHTESEME AERELE
as director and in connection with the management of the affairs of the ENEEARNAMAEBEEZHE -
Company and the Group.
The non-executive Director’s and INEDs’ emoluments shown above EXFIRZERTEERBLIEHRITE
were for their services as directors. EMeRBEFEETEST e -
No emolument were paid by the Group to any Directors as an RREEERN AEBTEREMES
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for SHME AEAMBS RN IMBEARE
loss of office during both years. 2R EBEER 2 mE -
There was no arrangements under which a director waived or agreed BMEBNEERZMEFEEAMESLR
to waive any remuneration during both years. EREEAMEHLEHE -
. . . . . e ~
12. Five Highest Paid Individuals’ 12.E85EaFMALHE
Emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, none AEBREZ R TMALTHHESS
(2018: none) was a Director. The emoluments of these 5 (2018: 5) (20184 : #) - 3% 5% (2018F : 58 ) A
individuals were as follows: TZBE T
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits FeREAMEF 3,464 3,350
Discretionary bonus BB TEAT 286 275
Contributions to retirement benefits scheme RORTE T FT 81 4R 187 181
3,937 3,806
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

12. Five Highest Paid Individuals’ R.IEEEEFHALHS
Emoluments (continued) (i#)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZHMEN T 7 &E :
2019 2018
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEBAH EE A
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 8 381,000,000 7T 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7t £ 1,500,000 % 7T - =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7t & 2,000,000 7% 7T 1 1
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals as RAEEE AEBYERN AL RS T
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation B A X B & - DAYE & hn B8 sk A n B8
for loss of office during both years. AREBR 7 R /EARER 2 mME -
13. Loss Per Share 13. 5 RE#E
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to the owners of the NANRIEBG ANELEERERNERE IR
Company is based on the following data: THEHE
2019 2018
Loss attributable to owners of the Company ARrlEE AEGEEBE(FHT)
(HK$’000) (78,496) (87,204)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in st E &R EIE 2 2 317 L @R

issue for the purpose of loss per share niEFHE (FR)

(in thousands) 1,211,320 1,211,320
The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as there AR EEE T ERTEIINZ B
was no potential dilutive ordinary share outstanding during both years. BEEEE NEREEERESRERN

EIEMER e
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14. Plant and Equipments

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

14. BE K& HE

Office
equipment,
Leasehold Motor furniture Computer
improvements vehicles and fixtures equipments Total
MAERE
HEWELE "E BRREE EHRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET TET FET
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1 H1H 1,096 2,918 229 331 4,574
Additions # - - 8 13 16
Disposal HE — - 47 (50) 97)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31 8 &

1 January 2019 20191 A18 1,096 2,918 185 294 4,493
Written off iG] (1,096) - (181) (138) (1,415)
At 31 December 2019 ®2019F12831H = 2,918 4 156 3,078
Depreciation nE
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1A1H 1,096 1,316 223 268 2,903
Charge for the year FEMBR - 547 3 50 600
Disposal HE = = (47) (50) 97)
At 31 December 2018 and R2018F 12 A31 B &

1 January 2019 20191 A1H 1,096 1,863 179 268 3,406
Charge for the year FEHK — 437 1 18 456
Written off s (1,096) - (176) (131) (1,403)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H = 2,300 4 155 2,459
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H = 618 — 1 619
At 31 December 2018 RK2018%12 A31H - 1,055 6 26 1,087
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

15. Right-of-Use Assets 15.EEEE
HK$’000
FTExT
Cost A
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 A1 H —
Additions and as at 31 December 2019 # 0 k20194612 A31 8 734
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 A1H —
Charge for the year and as at 31 December 2019 G Z 31k & A 2019F 12 31 H 244
Carrying value BREE
At 31 December 2019 M2019F12H31H 490
Included in the carrying value is the right-of-use assets related to office FHERERAMEEHNERARESR
premises, which has been depreciated over the lease period of 27 E - ER27EAEBRERET AFTE -

months on a straight line basis.

16. Financial Assets at FVOCI/FVTPL 16.

% =l
a5 Bad
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
(@) Unlisted equity investment designated at @ EEAEATEAEMEE
FVOCI (note) Wak 2 3E ET R AR E (FiTaE) 29,706 50,088
Non-current portion IE 7 B 3B 19
(o) Listed equity investments classified as () PEEBEAFEFABEZ
financial assets at FVTPL EHMEEZ LMRAKE
— capital in nature for tax purpose —RBEMEAEARER 21,222 25,064
— revenue in nature for tax purpose — B BEmES AR EE - 129,127
21,222 154,191
Current portion B 264
(c) Listed equity investments classified as ) PEBAKRAFEFABREZ
financial asses at FVTPL which is revenue in SREEZ EMBRAKE  H
nature for tax purpose BB E A ENE 106,100 14,348
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

16. Financial Assets at FVOCI/FVTPL (continued)

Note: The investment is not held for trading, instead, it is held for long-term

strategic purposes. The Directors have elected to designate this
investment in equity investments at FVOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in this investment’s fair value in profit and loss
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding this
investment for long-term purposes and realising its performance potential
in the long run.

REBREXTREREE  MERBEERS
RE - EFCBRBREEABRAREZR
ARBRAFEFAREMZENKE  BAA
RERR NESTRBZREZAF
BEEHNPRASEERAFEZRE
WHRERBREEERS ZKETH
7§K0

At Year End Date, financial assets at FVTPL of HK$106,768,000 (2018:
HK$145,392,000) were pledged to a securities broker for the margin
loan of HK$49,884,000 (2018: HK$46,185,000) granted to the Group
(note 19).

REHKEB BAFEFABRERZZ
Bt & E 106,768,000 JT (20184 :
145,392,000 L) EEH ¥ — B EHF K
CANEE—SEBTFTAEBZIFREXR
49,884,000 7T (2018 4F : 46,185,000 75
ot) (FFaE19) »

17. Other Receivables 17. HEt FE W BR 18

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T

Earnest money deposit for a potential investment EfER & EE 2 # =4 (i =)
project (Note) 4,870 25,000
Other prepayments and deposits HaFBNREREZS 677 605
Dividend receivable JE W AR 2 688 2,019
Other receivables H b fE YL BR 18 5 S
6,240 27,629

P ZABFERRNEEE T (REARK
KB —EZBILE=F)  R2018F F
B EBEREER T ZHERT IEI R 20184
BHBOREHRENELBA -

Note: The earnest money deposit was placed with the potential vendor, an
individual and independent third party to the Group. During the Year
2018, the negotiation with the potential vendor has been terminated and
a letter of request for refund of the earnest money has been issued on 30
August 2018.

RAFEE AEBKIFAD A A
35 4 10,000,000 Tt & £ H & A& &
10,130,000/ Jt 2 4 B & %8 > R F 4
B ANEBEELHERELEEHEDR
T 4,870,0003% 7T °

During the Year, the Group received settlement in form of cash amounting
to HK$10,000,000 and listed equity investments amounting to
HK$10,130,000 respectively. At Year End Date, the Group is in the
process of arranging for the refund of the remaining balance of
HK$4,870,000 from the potential vendor.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

~
%/j_\ PANY:|

Bt 7% R R Y R (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

18.

19.

Bank Balances and Cash/Cash Held by
Securities Brokers

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0% to
0.02% (2018: 0% to 0.02%) per annum. The cash held by securities
brokers carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01% to 0.25%
(2018: 0.01% to 0.25%) per annum.

Loan from a Securities Broker

At Year End Date, the margin loan from a securities broker was secured
by a portfolio of financial assets at FVTPL held under the margin
account, with a total market value of approximately HK$106,768,000
(2018: HK$145,392,000). The Group’s margin loan has no determined
maturity date and is subject to interest specified from time to time by
the securities broker. The maximum amount of the margin loan granted
by the securities broker depends on the market value of the assets
pledged with the securities broker. The effective interest rate for the
Year is 9.65% (2018: 9.65%) per annum. The finance cost for the Year
is set out in note 8.
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18.

19.

ROEBRRRE S5
%ﬁ#ﬁZE%

RITHEREMHBFEFEN F0%ZE0.02%
(20184F : 0% £0.02%) &t B ° & % & 42
RAEZRSEMSEFMNEN F001%E
0.25% (20184F : 0.01% =0.25%) &t & °

KERHFELZER

REZKEH REBHELELZHFRER
DHIFBEFPBETREE ZZRAFAER
ABRmzEBMEEZHAARKE &
M A % A&106,768,0007 7T (20184 :
145,392,000 7T ) « AN&E B 2 FF R E &
WEETHNHE  WERIBFELTRE
BEZHEFTBE BEKLBETZHE
ERZEacBIUARER TESLRL
CEEZMIBEBE - NFEZERFF
R 59.65% (20184F : 9.65%) o AN F [E Bf
AR PP 5E8 o



20. Lease Liabilities

21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

20.HEBE

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FE T
Total minimum lease payments: SRS HAERE -
Due within one year — &£ N B HY 360 —
Due after one year but within two years —FRERWEANEH 180 =
540 =
Future finance charges on lease liabilities HEBBEZARKGBEER (34) —
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEBRE 506 -
Present value of minimum lease payments: HEHRENFKIRE :
Due within one year — 4 N Bl 5 330 —
Due after one year but within two years —F & E R FE AR H 176 =
506 —
Less: Portion due within one year included BWoonEBAGER —FE R EHZ
under current liabilities i (330) -
Portion due after one year included under non-  FERE B EH —FEE| 8 2 Lo
current liabilities 176 —

During the Year, the Group entered into one lease agreement for office
premise for 27 months, the total cash outflows (including short term

lease) are HK$870,000.

The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised

was 9.25%.

Net Asset Value Per Share

RAFE AEBERRAMETL-—BELH
EAZHERZ AeRthBB(BREEH

#H &) A&870,000/8 7t °

EEREBEAEMRZEEGBRN XL

9.25% °

Net Asset Value per share is computed based on the net assets value
of HK$141,215,000 (2018: HK$240,093,000) and 1,211,320,200 (2018:

1,211,320,200) issued and fully paid Shares at

the Year End Date.

1. EREEFE

BREEFENENRFHEBZEEFE
141,215,000 7T (2018 £ : 240,093,000
B REBETTREHR Z21,211,320,200
A% (20184 : 1,211,320,2000%) % 15 5+ &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

22, Share Capital 22, i A
Number of Nominal
shares value
I3 & B HE
HK$’'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each SRMEEBETZETER
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 2019 201841 A1 H - 20184 &
2019412 A31H 4,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE :
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 and 2019 7201841 A1 H - 20184 &
2019412 A31 H 1,211,320,200 30,283
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

23. Iélarticulars of Investments Held by the 23. A&EEEZEH 2R EFTE
roup

Particulars of investments held by the Group at Year End Date REBRFEEHFZE Z2EEAERE L
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows: THHRB|FEAEWELT ¢

Fair values of Dividend Net assets

Proportion of listed/unlisted received attributable to
Place of investee’s equity  during the the Principal activities/
Name incorporation capital owned Cost securities year investment places of operation
FERER Em/FEH
REBR BEEH2 FAEKRZ REEFEAERL
=L = 7 B 3L 3 26 &Nl RE DFE KA EEFE XK Kend

HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEBTT

(Note (i)
(B =)
Listed equity
securities
£ R AE S
PY!| Corporation Bermuda 1.05% 17.81 5.23 = 47.05 Infrastructure investment
Limited (498.HK) and the operation bulk
cargo ports and logistics
facilities/PRC
RESEERLDA BHRE ERRENRATHE
(498.HK) B0 RS
&/
*ITC Properties Group Bermuda 2.37% 71.23 27.53 3.11 109.33 Property development and
Ltd (199.HK) investment, hotel and
leisure operations,
securities trading and
loan financing services/
Hong Kong, Macau,
Canada, United
Kingdom and the PRC
EEMESEAR BRE MEERRRE BE
A 7] (199.HK) FEREKEE &
SEERERBER

/&% R N2
R BERHEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

23. Particulars of Investments Held bythe 23. X &£ B E 2R EH 1B
GI"OUp (Continued) (#)

Fair values of Dividend Net assets

Proportion of listed/unlisted received attributable to
Place of investee’s equity  during the the Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost securities year investment places of operation
FEEES Ed/FEH
REBRZ BAEHZ FREkz REBEAEM
=L 7 R 3L 3t 26 N4 RE DNV E =) EERE XX Kend

HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT BEST BEAT

(Note (i)
(B &%)

* Greater Bay Area Bermuda 4.94% 351113 11.31 — 103.68 Operation of hotel
Dynamic Growth business/Hong Kong
Holding Limited and the PRC
(formally “Rosedale
Hotel Holdings
Limited”) (1189.HK)

RERRENEE BRE BEEBEE/ EBR
AR A PR 2 A (A e
ABEEERSE
RAE)(1189.

HK)

China Development ~ Cayman Islands 0.85% 30.42 3.27 — 16.23 Investments in money
Bank International market securities and
Investment Limited equity and debt related
(1062.HK) securities in listed and

unlisted entities on a
global basis/HK and the
PRC

BHBERRERR REHS RE2HZ &M MG E

A A)(1062.HK) FUARETRIELT
BRI KREREZKME
BESH/BEBRTE

* Shaw Brothers Cayman Islands 4.88% 41.24 12.27 — 23.43 Investments in films, drama
Holdings Ltd and non-drama
(953.HK) productions and artiste

and event management/
Hong Kong and the
PRC

MEABERER HEHS B  BIE MBS R(E

A 7(953.HK) RENREARED
Bl EBRPE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

23. Particulars of Investments Held bythe 23. X &£ B EH 2R EH 1B
GI"OUp (Continued) (#)

Fair values of Dividend Net assets

Proportion of listed/unlisted received attributable to
Place of investee’s equity  during the the Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost securities year investment places of operation
FEEES Ed/FEH
REBRZ BAESH2 FREkz REBEAEM
=L 7 R 3L 3t 26 N4 RE DNV E KA EERE XL Kend

HK$ million HKS$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEETL
(Note (i)
(P =)

*TOM Group Ltd Cayman Islands 1.14% 67.70 56.87 — 2.02 Chinese-language media
(2383.HK) conglomerate with
diverse business
interests in e-Commerce,
mobile Internet,
publishing, outdoor
media, television and
entertainment/
Hong Kong, the PRC
and Taiwan
"TOMEEBRAR HEFS PXERER NEF
(2383.HK) BE BEOEE- W
R POMEE - BRR
REHBE L T ES
/B REK

/=

China Strategic Hong Kong 0.77% 10.14 4.55 — 25.79 Engages in the business of
Holdings Ltd investment in securities,
(235.HK) trading of metal

minerals, metal, coke
products and electronic
components, money
lending as well as
securities brokerage./
Hong Kong, the PRC,
Europe and South
America

HREEERAR FE REEHFRERE <8

(235.HK) BYWES ¢BES:
REEREIRET
THES BERE
RIS ER/BE -
HE - BN R B EM
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS B R AR R

&)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

23. Particulars of Investments Held by the
GI"OUp (Continued)

Name

=1

Proportion of

Place of investee’s
incorporation  capital owned
FEEES
REBRZ

aF 11 B 3L 4t 36 EARLLf

Fair values of
listed/unlisted

equity

Cost securities
Ed/FEH

B AR EH 2

R{E NEE

HK$ million HK$ million

BEET BERET

WAEEREZREFR

Net assets
attributable to

the Principal activities/

investment places of operation

REEAEM
BEFE TR Seud

HK$ million

BEETL

(Note (i)

(Wi 3E()

China Construction
Bank Corporation
(939.HK)

B 2R RITARD
B | A 7] (939.HK)

Get Nice Holdings
Limited (0064.HK)

BEHERERRAA
(0064.HK)

PRC 0.00002%
H

Cayman Islands 0.21%
REHS

0.47 0.40

4.92 4.50
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0.62 Banking and financial
services/Global
operation

ROME MRS, 2B
BE

13.67 Money lending, property
development and
holding and investment
in financial instruments,
real estate agency and
the provision of financial
services, including
securities dealing and
broking, futures and
options broking,
securities margin
financing and corporate
finance services/Hong
Kong and United
Kingdom

BE MEEREGE
AERENERT
B ERIR  REEHR
ERRE  BEES
BE Q&L RS - 5
SRR RRE
ErRECHERDE
XRERY/ BER
el



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

23. Particulars of Investments Held bythe 23. X &£ B EH 2R EH 1B

GI"OUp (Continued) (4&)

Net assets/
Fair values of Dividend (liabilities)
Proportion of listed/unlisted received attributable to

Place of investee’s equity  during the the Principal activities/

Name incorporation  capital owned Cost securities year investment places of operation
FEEES Ed/FEH REER
REBRZ REZHZ FREKZ EHEEE/

=L 1R B 3L 3t B N4 R{E DNV E BE (B FE TTEK KCEwH

HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT BEST BEATT

(Note (i)
GE)
Unlisted equity
securities
FETRAES
* Rakarta Limited The BVI 14.70% 54.05 29.71 — (2.17) Investments in a subsidiary
principally engaged in
zinc and lead mining/
the PRC
* Rakarta Limited KBREZES BRERFENEHE R
FRMHEA R/
i
* Significant Investments held as at 31 December 2019 * R2019F 12 A3TBHEBZEREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

23. Particulars of Investments Held by the
GI"OUp (Continued)

Particulars of investments held by the Group at 31 December 2018
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as follows:

Fair values of

Proportion of listed/unlisted

Place of investee’s equity

Name incorporation  capital owned Cost securities
ERER tw/ kb

REER BRAEES 2

=L = 7 B 3L 3 B &Nl R DNFE

HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT

WAEEREZREFR

(%)

KEBR2018F12 A1 BHiFA 2 R E+H
BRELETRIEANZWRENT

Dividend Net assets

received attributable to
during the the Principal activities/
year investment places of operation

FREkWZz REBBEWL
KRE BEFE XK KEn

HK$ million HK$ million

BEAT BEAT

(Note (i)

(BEE())

Listed equity
securities

EHREES

PY!| Corporation Bermuda 1.05% 17.81 6.62
Limited (498.HK)

RESEERAR BEHEE
(498.HK)

ITC Properties Group Bermuda 2.08% 67.98 43.21
Ltd (199.HK)

EEHEREAR ARZE
A 7] (199.HK)
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— 54.88 Infrastructure investment
and the operation bulk
cargo ports and
logistics facilities/PRC

HEEREURKRRHE
B0 R R i
&/

4.44 117.10 Property development
and investment, hotel
and leisure operations,
securities trading and
loan financing services/
Hong Kong, Macau,
Canada, United
Kingdom and the PRC

MEERERKRE BE
FRREREE
AR,/ &% R -
mex . KERF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

GI"OUp (Continued)

23. Particulars of Investments Held by the

W AEEREZREFR

Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Proportion of listed/unlisted received attributable to
Place of investee’s equity  during the the Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost securities year investment places of operation
FEEES tw/ kLW
REBERZ BARSH2 FREkRZ REEAHERL
=L 7 R 3L 3t 2 N4 RE DFE K2 EEFE FEEL Kend
HK$ million HKS$ million  HKS$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEETL
(Note (i)
(B ZE ()

Creater Bay Area Bermuda 4.94% 35.13 9.56 — 109.45 Operation of hotel
Dynamic Growth business/Hong Kong
Holding Limited and the PRC
(formally “Rosedale
Hotel Holdings
Limited”) (1189.HK)

RERBRENEE BRE BIEEBEE/BBR
A% A PR 2 & (A Y
(BB EERE
PR A &) (1189.

HK)

China Development ~ Cayman Islands 0.90% 32.56 4.97 — 14.56 Investments in money
Bank International market securities and
Investment Limited equity and debt related
(1062.HK) securities in listed and

unlisted entities on a
global basis/HK and
the PRC

BRBERIREER REHS RERBEEMISE
A 7 (1062.HK) FAK ETRIEET

ERZREREBE
HEH/EBRPE
Shaw Brothers Cayman Islands 3.83% 38.69 13.04 - 18.01 Investments in films,

Holdings Ltd
(953.HK)

B R BERAR
7 7] (963.HK)

HEHS

drama and non-drama
productions and artiste
and event
management/Hong
Kong and the PRC
BY BISERIFBEIER
EREUAREARE
BER BERTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

23. Particulars of Investments Held by the

GI"OUp (Continued)

Proportion of
investee’s
capital owned
FEEES
REBERZ
&N

Place of

Name incorporation Cost

RE
HK$ million
BEAT

=L aF 1 B L 4t 36

Fair values of
listed/unlisted
equity
securities
Lt/ kLW
RAESZ
AVE

HK$ million
BEBT

WAEEREZREFR

(%)

Dividend Net assets

received attributable to
during the the Principal activities/
year investment places of operation

FREWZ
8=

HKS$ million
BEBT

REEAEMN
EEFE T Kend

HK$ million

BEETL

(Note (i)

(B 3E0)

TOM Group Ltd 1.19% 70.50

(2383.HK)

Cayman Islands

TOMEEER A 7
(2383.HK)

HERHS

Tracker Fund of Hong 0.0003%

Kong (2800.HK)

Hong Kong

BEHE2800HK) FHiE

China Construction PRC 0.00002%
Bank Corporation
(939.HK)

H B R IRITR D
B IR 2 8(939.HK)

il
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0.26

0.32

89.77

0.26

0.26

= 0.01 Chinese-language media
conglomerate with
diverse business
interests in
e-Commerce, mobile
internet, publishing,
outdoor media,
television and
entertainment/
Hong Kong, the PRC
and Taiwan

RXEBEE RNE

EE BEBEHA.
iR PIMEE - B
BRIREHE Ll
Xl BA
;P A -

A /=

0.01 0.26 A unit trust which
provides investment
results that
corresponding to the
performance of the
Hang Seng Index in
the Hong Kong Stock
Market

REZHBEBRMEL
BHRACREXE
ZEfEFRES

0.01 0.38 Banking and financial
services/Global
operation

BN MRS, 2B
EE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

23. Particulars of Investments Held bythe 23. X &£ B EH 2R EH 1B

GI"OUp (Continued) (4&)
Fair values of Dividend Net assets
Proportion of listed/unlisted received attributable to
Place of investee’s equity  during the the Principal activities/
Name incorporation  capital owned Cost securities year investment places of operation
FEEES tw/ kLW
REBERZ BARSH2 FREkRZ REEAHERL
=L 7 R 3L 3t 2 N4 RE DFE K2 EEFE FEEL Kend
HK$ million HKS$ million  HKS$ million HK$ million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEETL
(Note (i)
(B ZE ()
HSBC Holdings Plc ~ England 0.00002% 0.36 0.24 0.01 0.26 Banking and financial
(005.HK) services/Global
operation
ELERERLRA  HRE RITAE BIRTS, 23R
(005.HK) B
Unlisted equity
securities
¥ LW RAE S
Rakarta Limited The BVI 14.70% 54.05 50.09 — 0.88 Investments in a
subsidiary principally
engaged in zinc and
lead mining/
the PRC
Rakarta Limited KERZHS RENFEREFH RN
FERAM B A A/
H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

23. Particulars of Investments Held by the

GI"OUp (Continued)

An analysis of realised and unrealised losses is as follows:

WAEEREZREFR

(%)

BERRAEREEZHNMT :

Cumulative
Realised unrealised
losses for losses for
equity equity
investments investments
disposed held by the
during the Group as at the
year reporting date
REBEBHAE
FREHEZR BEEEZRAEAR
ERENER BENEBERER
BE8 BB
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F&T
(Note (ii)) (Note (iii))
(B 2 i) (B =2 Gii))
31 December 2019 2019412 A 31 H
Hong Kong listed equity investments BB LETRAKRE (1,858) (124,985)
Unlisted equity investment FEMBRAKZE - (24,340)
(1,858) (149,325)
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H
Hong Kong listed equity investment BB EMRAEKE (54,105) (67,513)
Unlisted equity investment FEEMRAZE = (3,958)
(54,105) (71,471)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

23. Particulars of Investments Held by the
GI"OUp (Continued)

24

Notes:

0

(i

(i)

For listed equity investments, net assets attributable to the investment are
based on latest published financial information of the relevant investment.
For unlisted equity investment, net assets attributable to investments are
based on latest financial statements or management accounts of the
investment.

Realised losses during the year represent the difference between the
proceeds on disposal and the initial acquisition cost of the respective
investment in financial assets. Among the realised loss of HK$1,858,000
(2018: HK$54,105,000), HK$1,801,000 (2018: HK$54,105,000) and
HK$57,000 (2018: nil) represent the realised loss on the disposal of
financial assets at FVTPL which are revenue and capital in nature
respectively for tax purposes.

Unrealised losses represent the difference between fair value and cost of
the respective investment in financial assets.

Related Party/Connected Transactions

During both years, the Group entered into the following related party/
connected transactions.

W AEEREZREFR

(#)
B 5L

ETRAREMS  REBBRGEE
EFEDAEBEREERB T Z&HM
MBEMREKE I LTRAKLEM
F REBBERHEEFEINRER
BRRMPBHRRAEERRAKE -

(ii) FAEEEEBEBEELEEHaRME
EREBEZHEREEAIYIRESK
ANz =z RE 2 3H K 181,858,000
# 7T (2018 4F : 54,105,000/ T ) A °
1,801,0007% 7t (20184 : 54,105,000/ JT.)
& 57,0007 7T (2018 4F : F) i H EL A
FTEHFABGZ SR EECZEZEE
BERBBME D5l AWERE ARG
E o

AEREREFHSREEREZR
FEEREZEZRE-

(i)

24.BEL BERS

MEFERN XEBTZUATBES/
ERXS °

Name Relationship Nature of transaction 2019 2018
£ 2R ES RHMHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET THET
Opus Capital  Investment manager of the Company  Investment management fees
expense 7,200 —
BlE &R RRFZREKE REBEERX
GC Capital Investment manager of the Company  Investment management fees
expense - 7,200
EEENR RRAR 2B K REEBRBEHX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

24. Related Party/Connected Transactions 24.BE 75 BEX S @

(Continued)

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management FRN BENAEETEEEEHMA
personnel of the Group during the year was as follows: BZHMMT :
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Directors’ remuneration EEE 240 210
Short-term employee benefits MHEEERA 3,051 2,933
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORTE T FT 8 4R 152 146
3,443 3,289
The emoluments of key management were within the following bands: TETEEBZMENFE TN EE :
2019 2018
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEA™ EE AR
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 8 38 1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7t & 1,500,000 7T - —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /% 7t & 2,000,0007% 7T 1 1
25. Non-Cash Transactions 25 FELEKE
During the Year, the Group has received listed equity investments RAEE  AEEBEREEH =S W3R
amounted to HK$10,130,000 for the settlement of earnest money AR AR & 10,130,000 7T ©
deposit.
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26. Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising
from Financing Activities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

26.%1%5%@1@5&152%1

TRALMASERELZHELABCE
B ERASKIREBH -BELDY
MELAABEREXBRAREGAR S
REXRDPERBELDASEREREZ

AeEREIARASRE

o

Loan from a
Lease securities
liabilities broker Total
REFEF
HEERE KLEZER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2019 R20194F 1 51H - 46,185 46,185
Cash flows HEanE
— Proceeds from loan from a securities —REBFLRLZERZ
broker Fr 15 %A - 14,954 14,954
— Repayment of loan from a securities —EEREIHALLZLERX
broker - (7,054) (7,054)
— Loan interest expense paid —ERNERMNERAXE - (4,201) (4,201)
— Capital element of lease rentals paid —BRNHEEzERH S (228) - (228)
— Interest element of lease rentals paid —EfEEZ2FEEHD (42) - (42)
Non-cash: JER & :
— Capital element upon enter of — BN EARE 5
new leases 734 - 734
— Interest expenses — FBRX 42 - 42
At 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31 506 49,884 50,390
At 1 January 2018 K20184%F 1 A1H — 51,099 51,099
Cash flows ReEnE
— Proceeds from loan from a securities —REBHELZERZ
broker Fr 1S 3K I8 = 4,546 4,546
— Repayment of loan from a securities —EEREELFLRBZER
broker - (4,914) (4,914)
— Loan interest expense paid —ERERAERAX = (4,546) (4,546)
At 31 December 2018 M®2018% 12 A31H = 46,185 46,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RS RS R AR B E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

27. Statement of Financial Position of the

27. R X B 2 B % AR % R

Company
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current asset kARBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR 2 &E 1 1
Amounts due from a subsidiary JiE Uk — ) BfY /B8 & R 3k 3B 18,741 171,621
18,742 171,622
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE Uk FfY /BB & B 3R IR 119,935 =
Other receivables H At pE W BR 1R 5,258 25,284
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRER S 132 92
125,325 25,376
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FEASTBfY /B A Bl 3k IB 12,824 12,824
Other payable and accruals H b fE {5 BR 1B & FE AT AR 1E 1,142 11,596
13,966 24,420
Net current assets REBEEFE 111,359 956
Net assets BEERE 130,101 172,578
Capital and reserves BEAXRHE
Share capital R& 7R 30,283 30,283
Reserves (Note (i) i 18 (B 3) 99,818 142,295
130,101 172,578

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

27. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company (continued)

27. &R R T 2 B R R T/ @)

Notes (i): B 2 ()
Share Contributed Accumulated

premium surplus losses Total
B 45 E ERER RitE#E st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET T T
At 1 January 2018 ®20184F1 A1H 192,895 123,754 (134,843) 181,806
Loss for the year FEEE — — (39,511) (39,511)
At 31 December 2018 MK20184F 12 A31 H 192,895 123,754 (174,354) 142,295
Loss for the year FEEE — — (42,477) (42,477)
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 A31 H 192,895 123,754 (216,831) 99,818

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between
the nominal value of the Shares issued by the Company for the
acquisition of GRIH and the consolidated net assets value of GRIH at
the time it was acquired by the Company pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 2001.

Under the Companies Act (1981) of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus is distributable to the Shareholders, provided that
the Company is, after the payment of dividends out of the contributed
surplus, able to pay its liabilities as they become due; or the realisable
value of the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities, issued share capital and reserves.

The Company has no reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
at Year Ended Date (2018: Nil).

ARw 2 BE#E G ESRERRE2001
FEEEABRARRIWEEARQFRE K
BeRARMBET RN EERSIRA
RZGAEBEFEZERE -

BIEE R E (1981 9F) A 5] 7A (EEE])
EHRBAUDKTRE HEEHELK
AR BE% AARBBRENEELE
HEE KARAREEZAEZBREET
SEALEMEREEE BEITRARE
P bl

REEH AARBERTBES R T’
W2 (20184 - &) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

28. Particulars of Principal Subsidiariesof 28. A QAT T EKEB AT =2

the Company 15
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RANREZH B AT R20195F k20185
2019 and 2018 are as follows: 12A31AZHBOT
Place of Issued and fully paid share Attributable
Name of subsidiary incorporation capital/paid-in capital equity interest Principal activity
BRTRBRIRE/
i) PN o 1 AR 3L itk 26 BEARA P 4 IR AN 8 £2 FTEEK
2019 2018

Directly held by the Company:

HAAREERE:

Accufocus Investments Limited The BVI 100 shares of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
RERRHS 100/ B REE1E T2 R 1D REZER

Carson Capital Resources Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Investment holding

BEERERAA BB 1R AR REZER

Indirectly held by the Company:

HARBEERSE:

GRIH Hong Kong 899,900,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding

TIREIE BB 899,900,000 4% & i ik REER

Genius Choice Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
REREURE 1REREEIETZRG REER

Easy Ace Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
RERLHS 1B REEI1ET 2 RHG REER

Ever Honest Investments Limited ~ The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding
RERAHE 1B REEI1ET 2 RHG REER

Prosperity Management Services  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of corporate

Limited management services
within the Group
SEEBRRBARAA BB 2[% E A Ak RASERRELEE
I8 IR 75

Rich Concept Investments Limited The BVI 1 share of USD1 each 100% 100% Investment holding

REBRAHE 1REREEIETZRG REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

28. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of

29

the Company (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of both report periods, the Company has other subsidiaries
that are not material to the Group. The majority of the subsidiaries are
intermediate holding companies or inactive during the year.

Subsidiaries of the Company are operated in Hong Kong.

Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity investments,
other receivables, cash held by securities brokers, bank balances and
cash, loan from a securities broker, lease liabilities and other payable
and accruals. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
liquidity risk and credit risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

28.

29.

ARAAETEMBLAZ

7+ 18 (@)

EREJINEZRRIBZFEAEEXE
FEEZARARMBAR EERRIR
HEMHBARZFBEEERREBRN
T ©

KR ok AR T HA YA
EEMELTEEZHBAT - KB H
2 8 R A R AR A R A A
CFER

RABIZHMBRARERBEE -
PERREERAFE
ol =

AEBZFZERTIABERARE
HMEREE EB58EFEe2RE
RUTEHRAES REBHFLELZE
K ME R E MMM RERE R
el EF e R T A2 F 1B HE R KT
B-RAtEeRmTARH RAREED
5 (55 mL B & e B A (B AR
B RBEERREERR - W
AL ERRZBRENTX - BEEE
EEREZENSRRNBRESEES
ARKmMAEBER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

29.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position relate to the following categories of financial

2.V HEEBEERAFE

=1 =

nl E (&)

WVITHEEREGER

A BRI KRR Z MK E(E &
TeREERCHEBERNE

assets and financial liabilities:

7

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKNATECERMEE
— Other receivables — Hfb fE W BR 18 5,563 27,025
— Cash held by securities brokers —BHELLEHE2RE 2,280 5,197
— Bank balances and cash —RTTEBREIES 26,448 45,738
34,291 77,960
Financial assets at FVTPL EATEGFAER
TREE 127,322 168,539
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFETAEMEERZE
LEMEE 29,706 50,088
191,319 296,587
Financial liabilities cREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost EBEKATECERBE
— Loan from a securities broker —REFHFLLZ2ERK 49,884 46,185
— Other payable and accruals — HM e BRTE K EETERIA 1,500 12,000
— Lease liabilities —HEBRE 506 =
51,890 58,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

29.2 Market risk

i)

(ii)

Currency risk

Certain bank balances and other receivables are
denominated in USD which is foreign currencies of the
relevant group entities. No sensitivity analysis is presented
on HK$ against USD as HK$ is pegged to USD and the
Directors believe the foreign exchange exposure is
insignificant.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances, cash held by
securities brokers and loan from a securities broker. The
Directors consider the Group’s exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk is not significant as interest-bearing bank
balances and cash held by securities brokers and loan
from a securities broker are within short maturity periods.

The management monitors the Group’s fair value interest
rate exposure on an ongoing basis and will consider
hedging significant fair value interest rate risk should the
need arise.

20.FHRBREERAQFE

3T = @)
29.2 T 15 & B

(i)

(ii)

BER AR

AT IRAIT 4 85 DA B B At B I
BRIBIARITEE MET
EFHRSEERZINE - B
RAETHEIXTHEB EFR
A3 HMNE BB & 08 Bt 3 R
25078 TR R T E X 2§
o e

7N 65 8 35 B 30 4 SN 0 I
oA BEESEZEIN
ERR UYKEFERHEE
HmERINE R

A R E

AEBARZERTEBHEER
THG BFREBAEZR
ERKEBBHERZERZ
AenEMERAR - EFR
A ARFERTES &
FREFAZRERKRERE
SREZEFABNRERA
AE R AKERARZ
RenEMNXERLETEKX -

EREREEEAKEZR
FEMNEXRERE IHETS
BrEEHMEARRFENEX
[ B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 9. B i% EEEERAFE
Value Measurements (continued) FTEmw
29.2 Market risk (Continued) 29.2 T 15 A B (@)

(iii) Other price risk (iii) = b E % =

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than changes
in interest rates and foreign exchange rates). The Group is
exposed to change in market prices in respect of its
investments in listed equity classified as financial assets at
FVTPL and unlisted financial assets classified at FVOCI as
disclosed in note 16 and note 23. To manage its market
price risk arising from these investments, the Group
diversifies its portfolio.

Sensitivity analyses

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2018: 10%) higher/lower, pre-tax loss for the
year would decrease/increase by HK$12,732,000 (2018:
pre-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by
HK$16,854,000) for the Group as a result of the changes
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL.

Sensitivity analysis of financial asset at FVOCI is disclosed
in note 29.5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 20.BEERBEERAFE

Value Measurements (continued)

29.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations with its financial liabilities. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of other payable
and accruals and its financing obligations, and also in respect of
its cash flow management.

The following table shows the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities which are included in the
maturity analysis provided internally to the key management
personnel for the purpose of managing liquidity risk.

=1 =

nl = (&)

203 REE SR

MBETERBREAEEEELRET
HegBERB AR AEER
REEMENREREERRR
HREEBTRERSREEE
MAR RS E SRR

TRBERASESREBEZHRT
EHNHERBAREERDES
EEmEASRRNEI2ERARR
HZ 2D HT) °

Over one
Within year but Total
one year or within  contractual Carrying
on demand twoyear cash flows amount
—FRH iR —F EHRE
RER ERWER mEAE REE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET FAT
As at 31 December 2019 A2019%F12H31H
Loan from a securities broker & B & 5 & 42 2 B 49,884 - 49,884 49,884
Other payable and accruals  E fib i < BR 18 %
FE &t BRIE 1,500 - 1,500 1,500
Lease liabilities HE&E 360 180 540 506
51,744 180 51,924 51,890
As at 31 December 2018 M2018%F 12 A31H
Loan from a securities broker 3 B E 5 &40 2 B X 46,185 — 46,185 46,185
Other payable and accruals  E it JiE < BR 18 %
&=t AR 1R 12,000 - 12,000 12,000
58,185 — 58,185 58,185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 0.9 BRABEERAFE
Value Measurements (continued) T2 @

29.4 Credit risk 204 ZE R

The Group’s exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to their carrying amounts as disclosed
in note 29.1.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
each individual debtor. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credlit risk is significantly reduced.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group
uses past and forward-looking information to assess whether
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. The
management would make periodic collective and individual
assessment on the recoverability based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The financial assets of the Group
which are subject to ECL assessment comprises other
receivables, cash held by securities brokers and bank balances
and cash. The management of the Group reviewed and assessed
the impairment for each financial asset individually under the 12
months ECL model. There is no significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and the risk of default is low and the
counterparties have the capacity to meet their contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. No loss allowance was
recognised as the amount was immaterial.

PROSPERITY INVESTMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2019

AEBERHFHRERTAEMEN
%\ﬁ‘i@%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%mﬁkﬁ*z
EERB  RARKSHBIRREK
Fﬁ%ﬁZ*HfEETﬁWH BEEZK
M {EFTEL

Z’-‘E.-E’E&u/u%ﬁﬂﬁgo\gkﬁ%
ZEEEERR  NZEeREE
ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ29.1ﬁﬂ%g2ﬁ§ﬁﬁmﬂo

REREFERER BEEEEZ
KBEEEK BEETEEERE -
ENEEREMERERF  BRE
B BR & 1T B YR B B HA(E 75 o sh o -
AEBEEREHEEBBEERXR
R1I)”:Hfﬁ%/\?;ﬁﬁﬁ§$f$°?¢tht

EERAE AEEZEER
ERE?('FM@&Q‘C’

HRAREERBRERME @ ~N&H
ERBERAEILEER  AFTGEE
SRR ES B V6 MR R REE
I B3R JE AR AR E St S B RD 8k )
BELRER K@ EAEL T HE
g R ERIFE - AKBERBEHMER
EREIGZEREERREME
WA BFREBHAZREAR
RITEBRERE AEEEEESR
ﬁ&%ﬁmﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
X T2 EREENRER

B Y16 i B 5 B A ﬁﬂ@%
%M’E%ﬂﬂﬁﬁ*ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁ
EIREHARREREANRE
RMEEE BAREBEILTEKR K
MEREREEEE -



Notes to the Consolidated HnandalStaMHnents[Conunued]

fRE B R R M A ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

0. EBEEREERAFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair

Value Measurements (continued) H-AC Y

29.4 Credit risk (Continued) 204 5 E Rk @)
Cash held by securities brokers and bank BEREEEZREUR
balances and cash THEBRRS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a concentration of
credit risk in respect of cash held by securities brokers as 84%
(2018: 80%) of the total balance was held by one (2018: one)
securities broker. The Directors consider that such concentration
of credit risk would not result in any default exposure to the
Group because the counterparty is a broker with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk in respect of bank
balances which are held by three banks. Bank balances were
placed at financial institutions that have sound credit rating. The
risk of default is low and the Group considers the credit risk to be
insignificant.

Other receivables

The earnest money deposit was placed with the potential vendor,
an individual and independent third party to the Group. As at 31
December 2019, the remaining deposit balance of HK$4,870,000
(2018: HK$25,000,000) exposes the Group to concentration of
credit risk as 100% of the earnest money deposit, representing
14% of the total financial assets at amortised cost at 31
December 2019 (2018: 32%), is due from one (2018: one) party.
In order to minimise the credit risk arising from the earnest money
deposit, management of the Group performed a credit analysis
on the background and creditworthiness of the potential vendor
to which the earnest money has been paid.

Monitoring procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In these regards, the
credit risk of other receivables are considered to be low. The
Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for other
receivables are not material under the 12 months expected
losses method. Thus no loss allowance provision was recognised
during the year.

MR2019F 12 A31 H » AN & @ it &
FEEFEZHEsMAZEES
OB v Ty B 4R A B M984%
(20184F : 80%) B — # (20184 :
—R)EFRLERFE -BHRRZ Y
FHRAEBBEEIARERAA
BEETHRZELAN EER
B BHEGESTRBRETEER
AREBHEEMELDER -

AEBERR=MEGT 2 ROTE
BIEFEEEERER - BITEBTE
MRS B TR 2 SR -2
WEBIEAAEERALERR
T -

H ftb & Uy Bk 78

BESCHEHRRBEES(BEA
MAEEZ —BBILE=ZF) R
2019F 12 A31H ' 88 N & & & &
4,870,000 7T (20184 : 25,000,000
BIL)IEAEBAZEEEFE
% BAREHHE S (ER2019F
12ANEKREHENATEZ SR
B EBR214% (20184 : 32%))
— 77 (20184 : —J5) FR&& R FT B o
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CAEEBTEEFRKIBEESZ
@EEEZ%%&{E BEEITTE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair ~ 29. (i R EE K A L&

Value Measurements (continued) -0 )
29.5 Fair values measurements of financial W5TMITAZAFENE
instruments
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the RIEEMBERAERPIEAFEST
consolidated statement of financial position are grouped into BEZeRmEERBEREA =R
three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined ER2ATEER - ZBAEFTIIR
based on the observability of significant inputs to the BtE=EMHEE KNG AE 2 ] 8=
measurements, as follows: BEAE W0OT:
. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for . F14 - HREERBERE
identical assets and liabilities. B2 mECREARE) -
. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within . 28 A F T E R B A SN
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either A EESEEER2EE
directly or indirectly. LB EHAE -
. Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. o FIR TN ABRZEESE

EEAE-

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial EEMEBEEZERE ED  AEE
assets is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level of BRZKEFEREAFESESR
input that is significant to the fair value measurement. BAXEZREBABKTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 0. EBEEREERAFE

Value Measurements (continued) 5T = @)
29.5 Fair values measurements of financial 05T AZAFETE
instruments (continued) (#8)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated REEET BRI R AAZEE X
statement of financial position on a recurring basis are grouped ERNFEFEZEREEE
into the fair value hierarchy as follows: DELNTHAFEREAR :
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R F28K HE3R st

HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT TR TRT THET

31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEGFABREZ
CREE
— Listed equity investments ~ — E WA E 127,322 - - 127,322
Financial asset at FVOCI BEAFETAEAMm
PHKECCREE
— Unlisted equity investment  — JE F iR AN & - - 29,706 29,706
Total 4Bt 127,322 - 29,706 157,028
31 December 2018 2018412 A31H
Financial assets at FVTPL RAFEFAEBRZ
TREE
— Listed equity investments ~ — MR AEE 168,539 = = 168,539
Financial asset at FVOCI EATFER AEAM
TEBR EMEE
— Unlisted equity investment ~ — 3 F iR AR E — — 50,088 50,088
Total FES 168,539 — 50,088 218,627
There were no transfers between the levels during the Year (2018: RAREE  BE{ 7 BT EE R
Nil). (20184F : f®) o
The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL was determined by BAFTEFTAESZEREEZ
reference to the quoted bid price in the active market. NEBEBBRRETREMBE FZ2E A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 0. BEEREERAFE

Value Measurements (continued) T E @)
29.5 Fair values measurements of financial 205 T AZAFETE
instruments (Continued) (&)
The information about the fair value of the unlisted equity AR BRIEFIMAFTEEBRGE
investment categorised under Level 3 fair value hierarchy are as FEEMEAEKZERNFEE 2ER @
follows: T
Fair value as at Valuation technique(s) and
31 December key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)
M12A31 B2 AT E RERMREZEAE EZFABEGRAE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERX FET
29,706 50,088 Discounted cash flows — Discount rate of 17.98% (2018: 18.62%);

— Forecasted production volume of
220,000 (2018: 220,000) tonnes per
year;

— Forecasted selling price with base price
of RMB1,627 (2018: RMB1,904) per
tonne and price changes over the
projection period based on World Bank
Commodities Price Forecast; and

— Marketability discount of 20.60% (2018:
20.70%)
MERENE — BhIRE B17.98% (20184F : 18.62%) :

— TBRIEE A& F220,000F (20184 :
220,0000)

— BRIEEBENUNEH ARM1627T
(20184F : A R¥1,0047T) A HE(E
RiRFEiH RIBITE R ERBEATEE
ARz B ES: &

— WEmE % & 20.60% (2018 4F :
20.70%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair
Value Measurements (continued)

29.5 Fair values measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

Note: A 2% increase or decrease in the discount rate used in isolation
would decrease or increase the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity securities classified as financial asset at FVOCI
approximately by HK$4,169,000 (2018: HK$4,604,000) and
HK$4,857,000 (2018: HK$5,318,000), respectively.

A 10% increase or decrease in the forecasted production volume
used in isolation would increase or decrease the fair value
measurement of the unlisted equity securities classified as financial
assets at FVOCI approximately by HK$3,778,000 (2018: 4,683,000)
and HK$4,271,000 (2018: HK$5,001,000), respectively.

A 10% increase or decrease in the forecasted selling price used in
isolation would increase or decrease the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity securities classified as financial asset at FVOCI
approximately by HK$7,933,000 (2018: HK$8,732,000) and
HK$7,933,000 (2018: HK$8,732,000), respectively.

A 2% increase or decrease in the marketability discount used in
isolation would decrease or increase the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity securities classified as financial assets at FVOCI
approximately by HK$748,000 (2018: HK$1,270,000) and
HK$748,000 (2018: HK$1,270,000), respectively.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of its financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair values.

ii%ﬂl‘ﬁ EERAFE

==N¢ )|

W5EMIAEZLAFEEFTE

(%)

MIsE : 8598 FE F 2 Bh 3R K 38 0 sk
2% AR ERAEARZATE
AAREMEERE s SREEZ
EEMRAZS 2 A FEFER
> Bk # 10 #94,169,000% 7T (2018
4 1 4,604,000/ 7T ) & 4,857,000
7 7T (2018 4F : 5,318,000/ 7T) °

B TE e A 2 TE B EE = 3 hn skom A
10% DR EBHHEARZRAFE
aJr]\ﬁ\ﬁﬂiEWmZﬁmﬁﬁEZ
FELEMRAZRZ AT ET =
0 2k R 4> 493,778,000 7T (2018
£F : 4,683,000/ T ) K& 4,271,000
7 70 (2018 4F : 5,001,000/ L) °

EBER 2 IENHEEE S sk
BWP10% KD R B H ERZRA
FEFAEMEZEARKZZ &M
BEZELETRAZHZATF
B 51 2 #5 10 sk 5 2> 497,933,000
# 7T (20184 : 8,732,000 TT )
% 7,983,000 T (2018 F :
8,732,000/ 7T) °

BB ME R 2 ™5 B ST 8 0
R AL2% B R BER D E AR
AFEFAEMBEEEZIZ SR
BEZELETRAZRZATF
B 5T = # 2 sk 1 Hn 49748,0007%8
7t (2018 4F : 1,270,000/ 7T ) &
748,0007 7T (20184 : 1,270,000
IL) ©

REBRBHEHKXNAARZSRE
ENBBZAFEREMAR
MESMERBARTEEIET -

EERR ERBGAMBHRRIRE
HRAARZEREERERA
BzREEEEAFEMES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE ISR RMEE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE2019F12A31 B ILFE

29. Financial Risk Management and Fair 0. BEEREERAFE

Value Measurements (continued) 5T = @)
29.5 Fair values measurements of financial W5 TAZAFETE
instruments (continued) (#8)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value EMEEFEIN L FEF
measurements of financial asset EZHER
Unlisted
equity securities
classified as
financial assets
at FVOCI
PEERATE
A H A
ZHEREZ
SREEZ
FEHRAES
HK$’'000
FAT
At 1 January 2018 R20184F1A1H 58,026
Loss recognised in other comprehensive REMEERYERZEE
expenses (7,938)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 7H20184F 12 A31 H % 201941 A1 H 50,088
Loss recognised in other comprehensive REMEARASERZEE
expenses (20,382)
At 31 December 2019 R 2019412 A31H 29,706
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

AR S B R AR B 5E (4R)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 %2019 12 A31H L [E

30. Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated losses.

The Directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of this
review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share repurchase.

30. EXERE

AEEEAEEEERRASECER
BMARNFERLERYR RAKBERENL
EBERER FERARREE - A&
B BRRBEAHBEFELEES -

AEFBZERARBEREARBER AR
RS (BREEHETRAE  FHENREFE
1) e

EETHRANEARARB - ERLRE Z
— WMo EEEEEARARERER
ZHEBERR REEZZHEBSR K
SEREBRNRE HTHREED
B FEHEEERRRE -
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Financial Summary

MBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #,Z=2019F12 A31H [t E[E

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T T &I BT

Results E

Profit/(Loss) for the year 4 &% 71,/ (&18) 17,126 (43,297) 160 (87,204) (78,496)

Assets and liabilities XERE®E

Total assets BEMBE 363,180 321,543 384,174 298,278 193,105

Total liabilities BEMBE (1,193) (4,408) (60,131) (58,185) (51,890)

Net assets BAEFE 361,987 317,137 324,043 240,093 141,215

Net Assets Value per & & &= FE (BT

Share (HK$) 0.30 0.26 0.27 0.20 0.12
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Glossary

In this annual report (other than the independent auditor’s report as set out A ARE R A (F R E44 49 B 7 ¥8 7 % AT )
on pages 44 to 49), the following expressions shall have the following &% 4N) >  BRIEXEREMIE BRI T4 A=

meanings unless the context otherwise requires:

Adjusted NAV
KRBFEEERE

Associate(s)

(RN

Board
5E5Y

BVI
REBRUHRS

CG Code

& =1 Al

CODM
IREBRRE

Company
FiN/NE

Director(s)

5%

ECL
BEHEEER

ESG Report

RE HeglkEamE

BRI TMRE:

the Net Asset Value as at the end of the relevant Financial Year, adjusted by (A) excluding effects
attributed to the issue of new Shares, Share repurchase and fund raisings; and (B) adding back (i)
remuneration paid to the GC Capital or Opus Capital under the 2016 IM Agreement and 2019 IM
Agreement; and (ii) dividends or distributions paid to Shareholders whether in cash or in specie

REBYBREFERNEEFE SHAUNTSEAELFE : AFBRBETHR RHBDRE
ENMFE: ROMEOEE016FREETRHAR0OFREEERAIN FTEEEAL
AEEANME : RMABESREY N FRERNBREHDIK

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BEBEFTRAETFZAZEE

the board of Directors

-

British Virgin Islands
KBRS

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
AR E14PTE 2 BRI

the chief operating decision maker
TERLERRE

Prosperity Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability,
whose issued Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

FERBEBRBERAR —RRBREIMALZBR AR HE BITRMO KB AER
=i

the director(s) of the Company
RARES

expected credit losses
EHEEEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE -HEMERRS
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Glossary (continued)

A5 (&)

Financial Year

MREFE

FVOCI
BAFEFAREMEZR
Wz

FVTPL
BRAFEFARR

GC Capital
EEZR

GRIH
2RAIR

Group
rEE

HKAS
BB GRH AR

HKFRSs

BETHHEEL

HKICPA
EEEHBAR

Hong Kong
O

INED(s)
BYERITESE

the financial year of the Company during the Management Period

ARARRERRR M RFE

fair value through other comprehensive income
BRAFEFARMEE RS

fair value through profit or loss

BAFEFAERE

Greater China Capital Limited, the investment manager of the Group up to 31 December 2018 that
provides investment management services to the Group and a private limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong and licensed to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under SFO

REBABRAR BE2018F12AMBA/AKEZRELIE  AERAKEREHRIEER
BR®E D-HMREEIMRLZMABRAR  RRBEEF P EGRIIETFEIEGE
EHRRUEER) FOEGIHBERERURER) RFIORRHREEEE)IRERD ZHEA

GR Investment Holdings Limited, a limited company incorporated in the Hong Kong and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

CRAERBRAR —HREFEIMALZAERRAR UAARARZZENBE R A

the Company and its subsidiaries
KRR REMERF

the Hong Kong Accounting Standards issued by HKICPA
EEGRAGEMG 2 EE ST ER

including individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA

BEEBESFAMASEMZIABEENBTEYBREREL FEGHENNREE

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
ERGMAE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B E B R BT E

the independent non-executive Directors(s)

BYIFRTES
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Listing Rules
A

Management Period
EEHM

MPF Scheme
15 & 5 &l

Model Code
E e HESF EIJ

Net Asset Value

BEFE

Opus Capital
Bl &R

PRC
R E

Prosperity Management
FHEEIR

Share(s)

Bt

Shareholder(s)
% 3R

Glossary (continued)
AR (&)

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Bt 22 A8 25 £ 7R AR A

the period from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 under 2016 IM Agreement or 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2021 under 2019 IM Agreement

RIE2016FEREEEWHZEE2016F1 A1 HE2018F12 831 H L B S B 1B 2019F R B &
B i B2019%F1 A1 B 22021412 A31H

Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme established under Mandatory Provident Funds Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

RIBFFB LV F4805RBIMEABR B GIMEM 2 RBIERTES S

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules

ETRRAMEI0AE ETETAERETESFRSNEETAI

the consolidated net asset value of the Group as reflected in its audited financial statements
REBREEZMBEREARR ZGEEEFE

Opus Capital Management Limited, the investment manager of the Group since 1 January 2019 that
provides investment management services to the Group and a private limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and licensed to carry out Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under SFO
BEEAERBERAA  B2019F1A1BAAEBE R AKE BERNASERHEKESE
BRS D—EREBTIMKLZAABRLAAE  RIREBEZS RAEROI AT EITEIRUR
HEEER)XREETH ZHBEA

People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this annual report, excludes Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan

PEARKAE  RATHAME - FEEES  RPIRAE

Prosperity Management Services Limited, a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

REBERBERAR  —HAREBIMKALZBRAR  ERAABZE2ENB LA

share(s) of HK$0.025 each in the share capital of the Company
AR A IR G EE0.02578 7T 2 Bk 1

holder(s) of Share(s)
P SESEEIN
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Glossary (continued)

A5 (&)

SFO
& 77 R BB 1561

Stock Exchange
Bt 22 P

Systems
ES 7

USA
xH

Year

REE

Year End Date
F4H

Year 2018
2018 F F [

2016 IM Agreement

2016 F I EEEWH

2019 IM Agreement

2019F I EEE W

HK$

BT

RMB
ARE

usD
ETT

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEPIESTIEZH R EE %D

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARZMERAA

the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
AEEREBERERANDEEZRR

United States of America
EHERERE

year ended 31 December 2019
HZE2019F12 A1 B L F &

at 31 December 2019
H2019F 12 A31H

year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 1231 ALLFE

the agreement dated 24 November 2015 entered into between the Company and GC Capital
regarding the appointment of GC Capital as the Company’s investment manager for the period from

1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018

ARaBHEEEAREZEEZEEARARBARABE2016F1 A1 HRLE2018F 12 A31 1 1F B

ZIRBEEMP2015F 11 B24 B3] 2 Hix

the agreement dated 18 December 2018 entered between the Company and Opus Capital regarding

the appointment of Opus Capital as the Company’s investment manager for the period from 1

January 2019 to 31 December 2021

ARAREEEEAREFEETEARAARB2019F1 A1 BRLE2021F12 431 B (- H

Z AL MR 2018412 A 18 B AT S 2 &

Hong Kong Dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
EBEEREET

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC
FEUEEEBARKE

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of USA

EBEEERET
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